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Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million, unless specified)

(LEMBETREN - BEFZHI)

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company

Total equity

Total assets

Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times)

Total interest-bearing debts to
total equity ratio (times)

Current ratio (times)

Trade and bills receivables
to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover (days)
Net assets per share (HK cents)
Return on total assets (%)
Return on turnover (%)
Interest cover (times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividends per share (HK cents)

Dividend yield (%)

Number of issued shares (million)

Number of employees:
Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan
Mainland China

Total
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Notes 2018
et ST
8,531 7,858 9,343 9,322 9,860
304 479 1,051 773 668
5,725 5,897 6,561 6,320 6,187
9,220 9,975 9,325 9,999 9,727
0.6 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.6
0.3 0.4 0.1 0.3 03
2.0 2.0 29 23 24
45 37 27 36 33
96 95 80 73 70
380 394 444 440 431
33 48 13 1.7 6.9
3.6 6.1 1.2 83 6.8
1 12 20 91 37 22
2 769 802 1,637 1,163 1,079
9.0 10.2 17.5 12.5 10.9
3 220 34.6 76.0 56.0 48.9
35.0 62.0 62.0 56.0 48.0
4 8.5 11.9 8.2 7.9 5.8
1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
697 601 622 648 676
10 10 9 10 352
12,638 13,368 14,722 15,740 16,499
13,345 13,979 15,353 16,398 17,527




Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.

1. FIBRELLFE 25 HBFERFIRA 2w FIEEFE &
2L o

2. BB TERBHERIFEBARGFE  HR - E
REHE IR

3. RGBT FTREE -
4. IR BB E 2 5T E B EIRIR B LR A R & A FR
W EZHE -

5. Y LR IEAFER G ER B FERIFAE - TR
BFRIIE AR E BRI AR E AR 215X ©
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Chairman’s Statement [EiREE

The operating environment for the Group remained difficult in the
year. The global marketing conditions were volatile and the costs of raw
materials, chemical dyestuffs, energy and labour went up substantially.
While not all the costs could be absorbed by the customers, profit
margins thus diminished.

Recently the Group has added a new production line in seamless
apparel mainly for sportswear brands so as to widen the product
portfolio. Meanwhile, the functional fabric capacity has been continued
to enlarge in order to reinforce business competitiveness.

The retail business still achieved improved results in the period though
the mainland China market was still highly competitive. The Group
had closed some non-performing street stores and relocated more new
stores in supermarkets. With stringent inventory control and diversified
product lines, progressive performance is anticipated in the coming
year.

The U.S. and mainland China markets have shown signs of economic
improvement. The Group will adopt a more optimistic business
approach to pursue new opportunities. The financial policies will
maintain prudent to prepare for challenges and uncertainties.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude towards
the shareholders and business partners for their ongoing support.

I would also like to offer special thanks to our colleagues for their
excellent contributions.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2018

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il R 247

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's total revenue
increased by 8.6% to HK$8,531 million (2017: HK$7,858 million). Profit
for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$304 million (2017: HK$479 million), a decline of 36.5%.
The Group’s gross profit margin was 30.7% (2017: 31.7%), a decrease
of 1.0 percentage points from last year. In the period, the decrease in
profit after tax was primarily due to the following reasons:

1. the one-off gain on disposal of a trademark of HK$152 million
recorded in last year; and

2. the additional tax provision of HK$139 million made in current
year.

Net loss contributed by an associate decreased by HK$5 million. The
Board has recommended a final dividend of HK15.0 cents (2017: HK32.0
cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total dividend per
ordinary share would be HK35.0 cents, a drop of 43.5% from last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business rose by 19.1% to HK$4,535 million (2017:
HK$3,807 million). The amount represented 53.2% (2017: 48.4%) of
the Group’s total revenue. In the period, the global business conditions
were unstable and the costs of raw materials, chemical dyestuffs, energy
and labour went up substantially. As not all the costs could be passed
to the customers, profit margin thus declined. The gross profit margin
decreased to 15.9% from last year’'s 16.9% and the average selling
price was up by 4.3%. The Group has diversified its production capacity
to knitted seamless wears to extend product varieties and strengthen
business capabilities. The performance and the key financial ratios of
the business were as below:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

XBREERARRER
BEZZ-N\F=ZA=+—HLFXUBEE » &&
BB LEHA8.6%EBESBIHEL(ZZE—t
FBK7858HET) c ANAEEERMIEEEMN
REEGNABEIMEET(ZF—tF : BH479
BERT) » TH36.5% c AEBZEFEH30.7% (=
T—+F :31.7%) REFRD10EEHE - H
W BRRBEFNRD ETEHATIRR !

1. EFHE-BRSKE-RMBSEBE 15288
TR

2. RAFEFIMEMBTEREEBEI1398ET -

EEBREARBEFETREESHET - E58E
BRBEABRESLBERBEI5.0L(ZE—+tF
BE32.01L) - EEFHIRE  SZERRELES
BHE35.01L > BREF T #43.5% °

BN

R EEELFH19.1% 581453558 T (=
Z—+F  BHE3807EER) c BB ALEELE
HEH253.2%(ZF—+tF : 48.4%) - By » BIRE
BARRLEREE - MER - L TER - 88RRIER
RAKIEEF o HRANIEFERIITHEEBRES - FIE
REM T - EFIEREFZ216.9% B E15.9%
MEYERERLA43% - KEBCKERES T
{LitER Zer AR MUB K E R R Kb 55
MEH o WEBCREARIENBLZREIINT :

(LB BEETBEN  BRFZHI)

Net sales HEFHE 4,535 3,807 4,741 4,718 5,026
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 15.9 16.9 217 21.7 20.4
Operating profit (note 1) EERBET) 240 350 666 622 671
EBITDA (note 1) BB ERBEAFE

(RiE1) 410 518 842 802 871
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRE(%)(HiF2) 19 49 9.6 8.5 8.4
Return on sales (%) (note 2) SHEWEE (%) (H1E2) 2.9 10.2 14.2 15.3 143
Return on equity (%) (note 2) RWEE(%) (M72) 3.0 8.4 12,5 12.8 12.8
Capital expenditure ERMRH 162 143 111 56 121

Notes: Kt -

(1) Exclude interest income and rental income.

2) Exclude rental income.

(1)  TEEFERARHEZUA -

(2) TEEHEZHUA -

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il 2 547

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT EBOERARER®)
(continued)
Retail and distribution business TERDHER

Sales of the business amounted to HK$3,989 million (2017: HK$4,044 ¥ EFHEABEI 8IFET(ZZE—+F 1 8
million), a slight decrease of 1.4%. The amount was 46.8% (2017: ¥4044BHET) » BHHA1.4% o LB E AAEH
51.5%) of the Group’s total turnover. In the period, the retail A& H£%E246.8%(ZF—+F :51.5%) c iR > A
environment in the Mainland China remained highly competitive. The BIAESERENHRIEIZ] - KEBHBFERIEHLL
Group continued its store relocation to improve the network efficiency.  EREMRNE - F » FYTLEEE RRIERAL
Meanwhile, disciplined merchandising and stringent cost control were  12HZFIE o RNEBIRSEF S LiERE R UIEEHE

also exercised to enhance profit margins. The Group has introduced RFEH - WE KRB R FTENELRBHIAT :
more innovative products to reinforce business competitiveness.

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as (a) HEBRBERFTEHLLZRBIGOT :
follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(OB BETBEN - BFRFIEZHI)

Net sales HETHE 3,989 4,044 4,592 4,591 4,816
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 47.4 455 46.6 46.8 46.7
Sales growth of comparable shops (%)  TLt/ERHERL R E
(note 1) (%) (HiE1) (6.9) (7.8) 7.3 6.0 (7.6)
Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) EERE/(BB) (HiH2) 14 (%) (93) 13 (245)
EBITDA (note 2) BB TEREHARE
(Hiz2) 102 (11) 8 113 (107)
Return on total assets (%) (note 3) BEREWEE(%)(H73) 0.4 (4.8) 4.3) (0.7) (13.9)
Return on sales (%) (note 3) SHEWE R (%) (H173) 0.2 (2.3) (2.4) (0.3) (5.2)
Return on equity (%) (note 3) TR = (%) (H173) 0.7 (15.9) (9.5 2.1) (42.5)
Capital expenditure AR % 73 % 72 43
Notes: Hiat -

(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during the (1)  HIEFERZEREH —FIIEE FEENEH
year and the preceding year.

(2)  Exclude interest income and rental income. 2) TOFEAEWRAREEKA -

(3)  Exclude rental income. 3) TEFHEWA -

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il R 247

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT EKOERARER#)

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued) BERDEERE)

(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) RBREEZFEHEESNUOT :
(HK$’million) 2015 2014
(B EET) “E-51%
Baleno ek 3,274 3,144 3,260 2,821 2,754
S&K S&K 238 293 415 476 552
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 109 215 304 320 417
ebase ebase - 5 98 336 497
Others Hit 368 387 515 638 596
Total =H) 3,989 4,044 4,592 4,591 4,816

() the development in different markets was as follows: (0 HBHHBSEREBROT :

Mainland China o B A R

Net sales (HK$' million) HEFH(EKEET) 3,414 3,476 4,013 4,014 4,098

Decrease in net sales (%) SHEBR (%) ) (13) - ) 17)

Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** SEREEBE(FLR)* 1,781,314 1,723,190 1,779,340 1,700,135 1,959,394

Number of sales associates*# EESHA 4,946 5,493 6,425 6,971 7,710

Number of outlets*2 FIm & *2 2,499 2,326 2,770 2,865 2,928
Hong Kong &8

Net sales (HK$' million) HEFH(EKEET) 574 568 579 486 445
Increase/(decrease) in net HEFE M/ (B (%)
sales (%) 1 (2) 19 9 2
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** TERAEBE(ELR)* 79,822 65,515 64,543 62,440 66,184
Number of sales associates ** EESHA 484 385 395 393 392
Number of outlets *# FAThE B *+ 73 60 64 59 66
EXkEREFRAT —Z-N\FH



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il 2 547

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)
Retail and distribution business (continued)

(@]

the development in different markets was as follows:

(continued)

EBOERARER®)

ZERDWER(H)
(0 BIHERRERMOT : (F)

Taiwan o
2015 2014
“E-RF ZEZ-ME
Net sales (HK$’ million) SHEFR(EMFET) - - - 91 273
Decrease in net sales (%) HEFEZRAI(%) - - (100) (67) (34)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** TEEEEECELR)* - - - - 90,689
Number of sales associates*# EEEHE - - - - 290
Number of outlets *2 P& E *2 - - — - 91
* As at the end of the reporting period * RIFERAK

# For self-managed stores
a Including self-managed and franchise stores

Garment manufacturing business

Revenue of this associate decreased by 57.6% to HK$313 million (2017:
HK$738 million). Share of net loss by the Group amounted to HK$3
million (2017: HK$8 million), a drop of 62.5%. The factory in mainland
China was closed due to rising labour cost. In the year, 3.3% (2017:
51.0%) of the fabric consumed was supplied by the Group's textile
division and sales to the Group’s retail division represented 10.0% (2017:
30.3%) of its revenue.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The current
ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at the year
end were 2.0, HK$1,578 million and -0.2 (2017: 2.0, HK$2,517 million
and -0.3) respectively. Bank borrowings decreased during the year as
the Group mainly repaid its trade and bills payables with cash inflow
from its operating activities instead of bank loans. The gearing ratio
refers to the ratio of the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and
cash equivalents, to the total equity. The net cash flows from operating
activities for the year was HK$184 million (2017: HK$276 million).

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

v BEE
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WEE AT ARAD57.6% R BHE313EET(=
Z—+F BE38EER)  AEBEELFEIE
ABYIEERT(ZZ—tF  BY¥sEER) T
62.5% - EHFEIAEMECHR I ERAR LIRME
o FR 33%(ZF—+F :51.0%) FEAMLH
RE@MABBIBPIELE - MBEFAEBSEIFIAIL
HIEA10.0%(=ZF—+F :30.3%) °

BRI

RBESRMKER
REBBBEEIFRIFOIEARR - RAFR - REEL
ZRITERBERESEBLEES 5152015 8
H1,578AB LN —0.2fF(=F—£5F : 2.0% » B%
2517EBTR —0.31%) - AFERTERTHRER
EEFEURERENRERANBRITEREER
ENRRREE - EXRABLEEDENRRERAS
ZEYRN SEBRUEER - AFKEMENR
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (continued)

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 12 times, 45 days and
96 days (2017: 20 times, 37 days and 95 days) respectively. The decrease
in the interest cover was mainly due to the one-off trademark disposal
gain of HK$152 million of last year and the increase in interest expenses
of HK$16 million over last year as a result of the rise in interest rate
during the year. The Group mainly satisfied its funding requirements
with cash inflow from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At
the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, the equity attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the unutilized banking
facilities were HK$2,445 million, HK$5,249 million and HK$6,049 million
(2017: HK$4,023 million, HK$5,450 million and HK$6,099 million),
respectively. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents compared
with last year was mainly due to the significant repayment of bank
borrowings during the year.

Capital expenditure

The Capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$256 million (2017: HK$216 million). The capital expenditure incurred
by the textile business for the year was HK$162 million (2017: HK$143
million) mainly for the addition of plant and machinery for the dyeing
and knitting factory and the establishment of a seamless garment
factory. For the retail and distribution business, our capital expenditure
incurred for the year mainly for the leasehold improvements of shops
amounted to HK$94 million (2017: HK$73 million).

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017 have been set out in note 35 to the announcement.

B REAR R ()

REBESRHKERE)

RAE > FERELE  ERRAR B EE5ERE
EBEXYRFELEXEAERES B H1215 - 45K
RI6K(ZZE—tF : 201% ~ 37K K9I5K) ° FER
BLUETHRETEAREF - RAENTEHEEEZ
WEBEIS2EET  RAFRFIREHSIBFIEX
HIEMBEICEET - REAER BERBRLEE
Y RABRERERMEEEEER R ARBARTE
BN R ABE2,4455E8T - BES5 24098 ETRE
#¥6,049EBT(ZE—tF : BH4,0238ET B
#5450 B B TR ABEE609EET) c BekBREE

BEARMLTH
REERAERER T HBEBE26HET(Z2
—t & BEU6EET) c HBEBREEELNY
THABEI2EET(ZT—tF  B¥143EE
) TEREABREBRSHLNERRKBRE
BMERKESE TERIHEEBRIE  AFEE
AMEFHABEMEET(ZE—tF  BEI3EE
T)  FEARTEEHNEERR -

BEERA
RIE-N\F=A=t+—BRZZE—tF=A=1+—
B WESEREECHERE -

REEE
RIE-N\F=A=t+—BRZZE—tF=A=1+—
A EEEBRACHNARAEMEEISA °

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il 2 547

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB fixed
or floating rate borrowings with maturity due within three years
(2017: two years). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents and
the held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investments amounted
to HK$2,445 million and HK$520 million (2017: HK$4,023 million and
HK$540 million), respectively, were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB
and USD. The cash and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits
with well-established financial institutions at fixed interest rate with
maturity due within one year (2017: one year). And, the held-to-
maturity and available-for-sale investments were mainly investments
with maturity due within seven years or perpetuity (2017: within three
years or perpetuity). As the US economic condition is substaining a
stable growth, the interest rate is expected rise steadily in the year to
come. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rate risk and
arrange appropriate financial instruments to reduce its risk whenever
appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB,
YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had about 13,345 (2017: 13,979)
employees in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2011 respectively. The environmental management system
will be reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
(continued)

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company to be published on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the
relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people, and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

1. World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

2. The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

3. The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest
Green Day”;

4. Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service — Hong Kong;

5. Sowers Action;

6. Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong;

7. St. James’ Settlement; and

8. The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.
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OUTLOOK

The global markets have shown signs of economic improvement
recently. The Group will take a more optimistic approach in business
development in the coming year.

The Group will continue its capacity expansion in seamless apparel
mainly for sportswear brands. At the same time, functional fabric
capacity will also be added to widen product varieties for market
competitiveness. As the textile industry is under intensified
consolidation, the Group expects to take further market share in the
long run.

For the retail business, the management will continue its disciplined
merchandising and inventory control to reinforce sales competitiveness.
More innovative products will be introduced to uplift profit margins.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to place significant resources to
grow the e-business.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group'’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; the retailing and
distribution of casual apparel and accessories; the provision of franchise
services and properties investment. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end
of the financial year; an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group's environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to
14, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 46 to 152.

An interim dividend of HK20.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 4
January 2018. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
on the Register of Members on 22 August 2018.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MBEREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- THRAKSEERBAEIEMBEEAG2LERS
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, & - S8E8HIFERERIHE > DRHESEXIER
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/ HRRIREESHEL] 28 o« WIHEL TEREEX
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not  BfiERRZZ5 °

form part of the audited financial statements.

Results #¥

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

“E-0\E ZE—tF -T-F ZE-1f —ZT-MOF
HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARTr  BETT  BETT BRI ERTT

REVENUE WA 8,530,806 7,858,476 9,343,282 9,322,316 9,859,613
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBANRR 467,858 520,057 1,344,536 858,248 707,007
Income tax expense FiE (151,108) (13,521) (87,416) (85,717) (117,555)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA 316,750 506,536 1,257,120 772,531 589,452
Attributable to: HE:
Ordinary equity holders of AAREREREE
the Company 304,328 478,525 1,050,655 773,293 668,352
Non-controlling interests FERER 12,422 28,011 206,465 (762) (78,900)

316,750 506,536 1,257,120 772,531 589,452

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests BE - SEEFERER

As at 31 March
=A=t-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

“g-\F -2-tF -B-XF -F-BF -F-MF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT  BEFL  BETR ERFL BEFRL

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 9,219,807  9,975465 9,324,808 9,999,169 9,727,009
TOTAL LIABILITIES “aff (3,494,818)  (4,078,062) (2,764,179) (3,679,337)  (3,539,865)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FFERER (475,671)  (447,770)  (428,618)  (233,616)  (230,673)

5,249,318  5449,633 6,132,011 6,086,216 5,956,471
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 42 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$2,251,606,000 of which
HK$207,254,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption
reserve, in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$1,166,000 (2017: HK$766,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)

Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Ho Tak (appointed on 1 October 2017)

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, and
still considers them to be independent as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 69, is the executive chairman of the Group
overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He founded
the Group in 1975 and has more than 46 years’ experience in the textile
field. He is the father of Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an executive director of the
Group, and the father-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 62, is the chief executive officer of the
Group. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years’ banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 41, is an executive director of the Group. After
his studies at The University of New South Wales, Australia, he joined
the Group as a management trainee in 2003. In October 2017, he
was appointed as an executive director of the Group overseeing the
overall general management of the textile business. He is a son of Mr.
Poon Bun Chak and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior
management of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 72, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council Members
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a consultant to Dao
Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008) and a member of the Election
Committee for the financial services subsector election for the 1998
Legislative Council. He is also an independent non-executive director
for a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he
is a former deputy chairman of The Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (1992-1994) and a former council member of the
Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 68, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 60, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he possesses
extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and private equity.
Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree
in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 55, joined the Group in 1997 and is the Group’s
financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a Master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales, Australia,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia.
He has more than 31 years’ experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 61, is a director of the Group's retail
operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had more than
20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 52, is the director and general manager of a
major subsidiary of the Group’s textile business. He joined the Group in
1988 and has more than 30 years’ experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 34, joined the Group in 2013 and is a director
of the Group’s retail operations. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 10 years of experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and
a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon Ho Tak.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), was as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director Capacity

EEpE 1

Executive directors:

HITES !

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
BWIE KIRERTZAIHA

Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner

TEEE BRER

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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HERAAMT :

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital
HARA BB BT
A=

Number of

ordinary

L ETE G E
BEERAR
HE

1 664,758,104 48.1

6,100,000 0.4
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Note:

1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be
interested in 664,758,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2018, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S FERRRHEMATHARD RIEERGHE
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (&)

(continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAERBEBR2FR :

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s

ordinary issued share
Capacity shares held capital
BEEAR (HAARERIT
220) 28 BABHE
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee 1 664,758,104 48.1
SN
Poon’s Holdings Limited Through controlled corporation 1 664,758,104 48.1
BREZERBRAE HEIZEFIAT
Farrow Star Limited Directly owned 1 664,758,104 48.1
HiEERS
Edgbaston Investment Partners LLP Investment manager 83,263,000 6.0
RERKE
Edgbaston Asian Equity Trust Directly owned 69,181,000 5.0
HiEHS

Note: it -

1. UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust found by Mr. 1. UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited ( fE & X ik 1= 5T #9 F
Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings FEA » ZIETEHEWESL LR ) BBE N EAUBS
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominee Limited. Poon’s Holdings Nominee Limited 15 5 )& FC 1% it B R 22 &l 19 £ &5
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow EETIRA o ERIZRKREMRZL a7 5 Farrow Star
Star Limited in turn holds 664,758,104 shares of the Company. Therefore, Limited#9 2 E8E 7T  Farrow Star Limited#
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings 5B K 2 71664,758, 104/ B 17  FUt - EHIESL
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 664,758,104 4~ UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited ~ EFEZRBER A
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited. & R Farrow Star Limited?# 8 5 # & Farrow Star

Limited T B #9664, 758, 104/ iR 17 HI 12 ©

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person, other than BREXFIEEEN  RZT—-NE=A=+—-0 #
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section AL (BRAQATESHERCHINESHBRMOK
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”  HEEIID 2 R AR 15N RAQ TR SRAERER (2
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or 1 HEHEER(ES KBS KG)EE3I361& T Uiz
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded ZEHRKKXR

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below, disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed below by the Group in accordance with relevant clauses of
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial
Building at 282-286 Bin Jiang Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin City,
China from MRL as a retail outlet for the retail and distribution
business of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1
April 2016 at the monthly rents of RMB1,207,500 for 1 April 2016
to 30 June 2016, RMB1,266,500 for 1 July 2016 to 31 March 2017
and RMB1,329,900 for the second year, respectively.

HEREXRS
ARAZBAUFMTESCR ETRAFE ATRE
ERFMHN TROZEMER S - ARAXS M
BER ST AT

() BAKENBEES

BR—REERRET  REAREEMS » %
EXGNEARTERN G TRREABLE=E
YRR 5 R

(i)

(i) ZEXZERBEAEIZNHRIRFET X
ZHERAFEE  YEAFERDARRMER

Rz e

RABRZEARBEA LK G MBBACERERA
EEZHHERER S RERTEETMASEAG 2T
B RIEERE30005 B BAYBEHETEL
HFR U B9 E FR T 2 RIS 5587405548
EEE L THR 2 fFERER S 2 AR TR
BE - ZAEHMHEBAERAERRE LTRA
B 14A56RMERBIRSCE U T FHERRER S FTEH 2
KE  BHBEERSRERARER ZEBREBRE
1

TERRNBEBERSHE -
BRETHRBEVALKRE  AEFEAFESE
VAT RIVBATGEBETERENFERBEIS N
ER4D HAER ©

[ — BB LR — Y EEBEEFTT
RIB-RNENA—H  ANEEELERR
ERAT(TWUE D) (AEATNHTESRIE
BRIEFBWZAERERR)EEH > B
EAMENAPERET T EETE2825; —
2865 RRETIRENEE - FALXEETE
ROHEEBNTENT AT —A<FNA—
ARAHME  SAHSIFH-_ZT—REF
MA—HEZZE—R"ERA=THAAR¥
1,207,500t H=ZE—R"ELtHF—HAE=F
—tE=A=+—HAARKM1,266,5007T &
F_FHARYE1,329,9007T °

(1)

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR



Report of the Directors EE & H &

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person
On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s
Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2016 at
the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person
On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 4207B,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong and a car parking space from
WLEL as a training center of the Group for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2016 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2018
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2018 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprised of six members. The three
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Ting Kit Chung
and Mr. Poon Ho Tak. The three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs") included Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law
Brian Chung Nin.

During this financial year, Mr. Poon Ho Tak was appointed as an
executive director on 1 October 2017. Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr.
Poon Bun Chak.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company
have a term of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
Clause 87 of the Company's bye-laws.

Executive chairman and chief executive officer

The executive chairman and the chief executive officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the executive chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated.
The primary role of the executive chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence and qualification of independent non-executive directors
The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of
its Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:
(1)  to lay down the Group's objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

()

to monitor the performance of each operating segment;
(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

4

to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;
(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company'’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group's
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors
=
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak EWIE
Ting Kit Chung TR
Poon Ho Tak BEE
Independent non-executive directors BAFHITES
Au Son Yiu ELE
Cheng Shu Wing S
Law Brian Chung Nin EEFE
A: reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s
duties and responsibilities, etc.
B: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2018. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

5=

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EWE

Ting Kit Chung THER

Poon Ho Tak BEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES
Au Son Yiu EAE

Cheng Shu Wing LSS

Law Brian Chung Nin EME

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

EEg®)

REEFASRESSS:
BEZZ—\F=ZA=+—HLFER » KARHET
—AREBEASRNAEESEASE - SHUES
BRETEEHETSHIMT

Attended/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of office

RERRHE BITEBRY

Regular Board Annual General

Meeting Meeting
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit committee (continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)

monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

() monitoring the performance of the Group’s internal audit team;

(d)  considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and
(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the

Group.

The Audit Committee held seven meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018 to review the followings:

(a)

the risk management and internal control of the Group;

(b)

the effectiveness of internal audit function;

() the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

(d)

the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee
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Law Brian Chung Nin R
Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing WAL
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs and
one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing,
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well
as the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be
involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
terms of executive directors’ contracts, directors’ fee as well as the
remuneration and performance bonus of executive directors and senior
management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMESERE

Au Son Yiu 23
Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ting Kit Chung THER

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

EER

|E

EEZE2#)

FMESE
AATCIREHRAIEISGE R —FHEES
(HMEER ) - ¥MEESWREBE =B

HITESR—UBTES
BREE - BPFAERTEBSEE -
MESSWER -

DRIBELZEELE - W

FHEEETEEBERANRNEERSREEAEN
FHHERRBNENTESHHEDESSRERS
R RETESEREREBEASNFMNE - HFIWES
E2EZAERKAFANRYE - THHERRITHENE
Bl bboh - HNEES ST SRR BESREMHE
BATSHETZESHHH -

REBE-Z2-N\F=ZA=1T-HLFER " %ﬁ@)ﬂéﬁ
SRBTIREH Evtiﬂﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ% R
BWEMNITEERS ”EJ\E\E’J%M&&EEE‘H&
E’J?bilr"]§$ﬁ’$zf,\ =

FHESERNEE_Z
ZERHFEREHIWT

—N\F=ZA=t—-HLFER

Attended/Number of meetings

held during the tenure of office

RERRHE BITERRE

3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2018 is set out in note 7 to the financial statements contained in
this Annual Report.

Further details of the directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
March 2018 are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements contained
in this Annual Report.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director, namely
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr.
Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board ensuring that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience; to recommend candidate for directorship to the Board; to
review and recommend the re-appointment of directors standing for re-
election at the Company’s 2017 annual general meeting; and to assess
independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEENE

Cheng Shu Wing WAL
Au Son Yiu B4R
Law Brian Chung Nin R
Ting Kit Chung T
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; and reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the financial year, except
for the following deviations:

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chairman considers the chief executive officer a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the chief executive
officer has been serving for similar duties for many years and he
has good understanding of each operating segment of the Group.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, they
have all complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the financial year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Company Secretary undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to upgrade his skills and knowledge.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2018, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

R

Audit services rendered SRMETRE
Tax services rendered SIRMF KRS
Review of continuing connected transactions EHEBERER S

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 39 to 45.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1) regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the internal
audit team; and

(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal
control and financial report.

For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:
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During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant senior
management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnels and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings ("AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the Company;
and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the

results of the Group on the Company’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power
under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the AGM.

Changes to constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116/ (852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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EY:x

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 46 to 152, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETRNMAEEREESER

Provision for inventories

FHEE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$2,237,568,000, which comprised of textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved in
estimating inventory provisions. Judgement was required
to assess the appropriate level of provision for items which
may be ultimately obsoleted or sold below cost as a result
of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such judgements
included management’s expectations for future sales net
of estimated selling expenses.
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We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was made
in accordance with the policy. We have examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEITER

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates, the reversal of provision for
inventories and the balance of inventories are included in
notes 3, 6 and 21 to the financial statements.
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Recoverability of trade receivables
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As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables before provision amounted to HK$954,380,000.
Management is required to assess whether a provision for
impairment is needed in respect of those trade receivable
that might not be fully collectable. The determination
as to whether a trade receivable is collectable involves
management judgement. Specific factors management
considers include the age of the balance, recent
historical payments, existence of disputes, and any other
available information concerning the creditworthiness
of the counterparties. As at 31 March 2018 the
impairment provision recorded for trade receivables was
HK$12,962,000.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 22 to the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
PSRN IEERRENER

We tested the reliability of the underlying data used by
management to calculate the inventory obsolescence
provisions by reviewing the inventory ageing analysis
and checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent sales
and usage.
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We also tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.
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For those items which were identified as slow-moving,
excess or obsolete, we assessed management’s
calculation of net realisable value by checking to the
latest or subsequent selling prices.
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Our audit procedures included assessing management'’s
processes and controls relating to the monitoring of
trade receivables and identifying collection risks. We
tested the ageing analysis of trade receivables and
examined post year end cash receipts for a sample of
year-end trade receivable balances. We assessed the
Group's provision levels by considering the historical
cash collection trends and evaluating underlying
documentation supporting the recoverability of
outstanding balances. Furthermore, we enquired of
management about any disputes with the Group’s trade
debtors.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

2k o

Tax provisions and contingencies

HERERAARTE

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain subsidiaries
of the Group for the years of assessment of 2005/2006
to 2016/2017. Estimating the outcome of the final tax
position and the assessment as to whether a provision
and the amount of such provision should be recognised
are complex and judgmental, and the amounts involved
would be material to the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Our audit procedures included making enquires of
the Directors to obtain their view on the status of the
review conducted by the IRD and understanding the
process followed by management to assess the impact
of such review. Our internal tax specialists analysed the
Group's correspondence with the IRD and considered
management’s assessment of the probability and
outcome of the objections to the estimated assessments
or additional assessments issued by the IRD with
reference to other similar cases. We also assessed
whether the Group’s disclosures detailing the review
conducted by the IRD adequately disclosed the potential
liabilities of the Group.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting

judgement and estimates and the details about the tax

review are included in notes 3 and 35(b) to the financial

statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL HBERNFRAHMER

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

ESHAREMBRRARENERE

BUBHREERFBQROANREEREREE
RRAAWNGEEHMBRE  URAEBEEEEA/LE
AR - UERESHBRENGERLBEFRE
REEERBR (T am H R FFREEEREE) -

EREFSHBHRERE . EQRERAENM &
SEHESENRD - TEBERBER TRERSER
EERNSEE  UREAFESERSTER K
# BLREFARN BREFRIFLEE I
RIEEMERNENRTE -

EREEEHE BARNESETRE  EE
Ell:okpr ey B e

=F S

BB ET R EMBHRABNERE

BFMERE  RHGREHERREBEERSTFEAR
M E R MER N ERERRMESESERE I
HEGERMERNZEMMBE - RANRERES
RIENTE1981FE 0K EH T ERRFER - Rkl
O RREWBEMAE - REATSHZEEIHRE N
AR EEMEMA L8 FRRETAEE -

BERBRZBXFHRE  ETERBFRREBE
EAPETHE - EX - ERERRAMIFERFAEE
B o SRERBRAL T A ERFF AR 1L - RS TR
EHEBNERERAIELERSPWBRREAEMK
HESMBRRAMELHNEERE - BIEEHERR
MATPAREE R ©

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR



Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2{Ef 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor's Report & 7 & Z A R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

15 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss £ 51 &

Year ended 31 March 2018 —E— E=H=+—H

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Gain on disposal of a trademark
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of loss of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

A
SHERA

EF
HABKA K Y i
HE—BRWE
M A B W ES
HERDHER
THER
Hit&EERA - F8
B E A
BEEE D REE

FRBE AR
Bt

REEER

B
RAREBESEEE

SRIER S

BEANREBES
FEESRER

BN MER CEFEL)
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2018 2017
—E-N\E —E2—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BYFT BIF T

5 8,530,806 7,858,476
(5.912,886) (5,367,362)

2,617,920 2,491,114

5 317,344 212,603
- 152,400

33 57,254 -
(1,701,581) (1,700,552)
(758,950) (597,126)
(18,198) (3,617)
8 (42,810) (26,993)
(3,121) (7,772)

6 467,858 520,057
9 (151,108) (13,521)
316,750 506,536

304,328 478,525

12,422 28,011

316,750 506,536

11

22.0 34.6




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZREZ2EUW A FK

Year ended 31 March 2018 —E— \FE=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR NEFEEF 316,750 506,536
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ~ Efti2EW A~ (&)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be AHEZHEAIEHDES
reclassified to profit or loss in BRWEMEME
subsequent periods: WA (E5E) -
Exchange differences on translation of BEBIMCEERESE
foreign operations ZERER 233,122 (289,566)
Reclassification adjustments for foreign FAHEBICEER
operations disposed of during the year BEEZHERE 33 (3,804) -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REZBETERSEZE
to be reclassified to profit or loss in BENEMEE
subsequent periods WA, (E518) R4 229,318 (289,566)
Other comprehensive income not to REZBBRIEHR > EE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BRNEAM
subsequent periods: ZHEHBA :
Revaluation of assets EEEM 12 - 4,090
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ZAREEHMWEE
FOR THE YEAR WA (EE) 229,318 (285,476)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AFERH
THE YEAR ONE 546,068 221,060
Attributable to: B8
Ordinary equity holders RAREBESEE
of the Company 518,167 201,908
Non-controlling interests RS 27,901 19,152
546,068 221,060
EXkEREFRAT —Z-N\FH



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt & AR R TR

31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Construction in progress
Trademarks

Investment in an associate
Prepayments

Long term rental deposits
Long term held-to-maturity investments
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Held-to-maturity investments

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets classified
as held for sale

Assets of a disposal group classified
as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables, accrued liabilities and
deposit received

Due to an associate

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FREEE

M - BMERRE
REME

BN THEER
EEIR

E
REEATRZRE
EfRE
REESES
REBZFHNEE
AHHERE
EERIEEE

BERBEE

REBEE

FE

FEWBRR

e

BNRIE FTER
H it U AR

HEIHNRE

TTHEERMERE

RERBREEEY

DEBEHEN
FRBEE
DEBEHEN

HEARERE
BRBEE
REAE

FEBRX
NES

HiENRR - BEtRER

SWET &
FERHE N T
TEEmEE
M SERITER
FEf iR

BRBEE
REBEEFHE

REERRBEE
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12
13
14
15
16
17
22
22
19
20
29

21
22

22
19
23
24

25

25

26

27
18
23
28

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E2—+F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BHFT JBHEFT
1,386,473 1,313,688
524,400 459,403
13,068 12,733
88,475 27,018
33,293 33,293
70,582 75,243
119,870 37,270
87,183 112,776
156,902 220,003
152,061 54,250
32,809 28,359
2,665,116 2,374,036
2,237,568 2,050,435
941,418 665,388
108,931 123,507
566,776 446,273
211,421 265,531
43,549 14,315
2,445,028 4,022,914
6,554,691 7,588,363
- 3,878

- 9,188
6,554,691 7,601,429
1,019,340 812,514
19,232 21,961
499,026 473,991
20 57,001
44,160 12,231
1,390,804 2,436,599
234,183 15,076
3,206,765 3,829,373
3,347,926 3,772,056
6,013,042 6,146,092




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt #& AR R 3R

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEM
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITER 28 187,500 80,682
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE 29 100,553 168,007
Total non-current liabilities BIERBERE 288,053 248,689
Net assets EEFHE 5,724,989 5,897,403
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ordinary equity AP EBERESE
holders of the Company b
Issued capital BT 30 69,085 69,085
Reserves & 31 4,972,979 4,938,405
Proposed final dividend BORRERRR 2 10 207,254 442,143
5,249,318 5,449,633
Non-controlling interests IR AR 475,671 447,770
Total equity R 5,724,989 5,897,403
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EZ EE
Director Director EWE THE

BRERWEWLT —T—NFH @



BER

o (1200050 8E6 Vi - HF—5=)X

000'6£6TL6 vify K #)-S L T bl 2 B I S B3 g WY Er Hf B 49 & 37 *

‘uojyisod [eidueury JO JUSWSLLLS PIIEPI/OSUOD Y]
ul (000°S0L'8€6 V$)IH £10Z) 000°646°2L6 V$)H 4O S9AI524 P1EPIjOSUOI Syl 8511dUWI0d SJUN0Ide 9AI95 9SdY |

V_Am 686'VZL'S LLO'SLY  BLE'GWT'S ¥ST'LOT  88T'TSE'E 6 992’66 0S€'71T 986'€ 569'L S9E'E0L  $80%69 @ H—+=HZ=HV-&=W 810Z WYIeW LE WY
% - - - vse'Lor  (vST'Lor) - - - - - - - (01 Z20H) & W 0 (01 330u) puspiaip
40 EEATEE /B feut} pasodoud 81.02/10¢
1 (6ec'ytr) - (eec'otr) - (6ec’oLy) - - - - - - - (0122 & ¥k th (01 330u) puspiaip
Hy\V—&-/F-&= WS 8107/L10T
(evl'zvr) - (evL'zhy)  (evb'evy) - - - - - - - - EHEVIED palepap
HEFI—&-/N-&C PUSPIAIP [eUI £102/9102
890'9YS  106'LC orsls - 8ze'0E - - 6ER'ELT - - - - B 1eakayy Joj swodul
K%@MM&% w>_mcw;w.aES |e10]
(v08'€) - (v08'€) - - - - (v08'€) - - - - BHEY Jeakayy burinp
ZFEHE  jo pasodsip suonesado ubiaioy
ETHBETME  Jojsjuawisnipe uonediyisse[ay
T'EET  bLY'SL o'l - - - - €9'L1T - - - - BZYF suopnesado ublaIo4 o UoLe|sues)
o CHEGEETEEY Uo saausaIp abueydx3
L () /Y :1e9f 3y} Jo} (s50])/aUIODUI
M BIHEFHY anIsuaya.dwiod Jay1Q
,__/ 0sL'9lE 't 8TE'W0E - 8E'm0E - - - - - - - VB EHY Jeaf ayy Joj 11j0ig
1
| E0V'L68'S  OLL'LYy  €€9'6WY'S evl'Thh  €SSLEL'Y 6 9v2'66 (68t°'L) 986'€ 569'L S9E'E0L  S80'69 B-HEsd—&=W L107 |udy | 3y

—NE=

—z

YigE  ULEE
000.$¥H  000,$)H
2 T

L EE

S)salolul

Aunba

Y&
000,$3H
14

[e3oL

Yha#
000.$3H
LL
Pl

puapinlp

Y&
000,$3H
B

¥SHjoad

(LEEL)
(L€ d30u)
Vg
000.$)H
HETH

eV ERE)]

L&

000.$3H
S

HEER

PCTVELCT]

YLHE

000.$XH
B

EREY

£9AISSDI

(LEEH)
(1€ 30u)
YL g
000.$)H
HEHE

xSnjdins

YL H#
000.$YH 000.$XH

M *HE
1 2. 2

xONIOSDI xjunode

YL HE

000,$)H
¥H
LER
|ende>

ted Annual Report 2018

imi

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ?
A

Year ended 31 March 2018 & Z

[e3oL

Buijjo3uod [eut
-UoN pasodoid

ey  |ebay uopen|eAal

1955y

uonenpnyy
abueypxz

panquiuo) uond )
[ended

wnjwa.d
aleys

panss|

SEHREYRAERETY
Auedwo) ay} jo siapjoy Aynba Areuipio 0} 3jqeInquny

TEXWINCA Holdings L|



F—ALEE

mBE K

Il
o |
AD _/ €0v'L68'S  OLL'Lpy  €€9'6VY'S  Evl'Thy  ESS'LELY oY 972’66 (68t°1) 986 569’1 S9€'€0L 98069 H—4=H=33-&-" LIOZ YIeN LEW
s g
_ = *_E_ - - - iy (i) - - - - - - - (0L & W0 (01 310U) pudPIAIP
> % EERES mygvss [eut} pasodoud £107/9102
= o (0sTiY) - (60sviy) - (osviy) - - - - - - - (0L 2f) & Mt ch (01 d30u)
=3 S EERES mygvss PUSPIAIp WIBIUI £102/9102
r_u._l m (LLL'soy) - (LeL'eow)  (LeL'eow) - - - - - - - - SHIEHNEYIED paie[yap spuspialp [enads
c s HyV-—&-/T-&= pue jeuly 910z/510C
— 090'1zz  TSL'6l 806'07 - sessy - 119 (vezerr) - - - - i 1eak 3y} Joy (5s0])/awodul
2 (89)/ YNETHHY ansuaypiduio) [ejoL
IS
m 0607 ELy'l £19' - - - £19' - - - - - (CIEH)HEEE  (7) 910U) $)3sse Jo Uolenjendy
pS (995'687)  (zec'ol)  (vEToLD) - - - - (vez'6L2) - - - - B =% suonesado ublalog Jo uone|sues)
ZIEYEETEEY U0 sUIRLIP 3BUELPX3
L (B /Y .13k 3y} Joj (Ss0[)/aWodUl
BIYEDbY anisuayaIdwiod 13y
9€5'905 110'82 ses8Ly - ses8Ly - - - - - - - HE Y Jeak ay) 4oy 11j01d
629'095'9 819'8cy  LL0'ZEL'9  LLL'69y  089'60ST  6Y 629'96 ShL'LLT 986 569’1 S9€'€0L 98069 B-HuEHY—&=W 9107 |udy | 1

(LERH) (LEEL)
(1€ d30u) (1€ 3j0u)
Vi@  ULHE  ULHE  ULGE U gE U gE  ULga ULgE  VlgEx  Uiga ULgE UG
000.$YH  000.$YH  000.$YH  000.$¥H  000.$XH  000.$XH  000.$XH 000.$YH  000.$XH  000.$)H 000.$YH  000.$)H
f ot 47 EHEY  «MEBY LHPIE LBE L SHEHE  «HE «HE¥ pd]
Wk b4 HEFE  EERY ] . 2 Uga

Aynba sisalalul  [elo) puspinp  4sujoud  .BAIRSRL  4BAIBSDI PETVELE ¥BMIBSBI sunone  [ended
[elo) Buijjosuod [eut paueysy  |ebag uopen(eAss  uonenpnyy inquyuo) uondwapas wnjwadid  panss|
pasodo. 185y abueydxz |ende) aleys

SHFEYRHERETY
ys Jo siapjoy Aunba Areurpio 0} 3jgeInquny

Consolidated Statement of Changes

—E-N\EH

RAEXRERRLR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8B & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2018 BiZ —ZE— NF=F=+—HI FEF

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

—B-N\&F

HK$°000
BETFT

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
BT T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FREL AT R F] 467,858 520,057
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs M E R 8 42,810 26,993
Share of loss of an associate FEAL B E A EESE 3,121 7,772
Interest income FEYA 5 (76,289) (81,338)
Net fair value gains on derivative TSI AERNRER
financial instruments w=FEE 5 (47,082) (21,497)
Net fair value gains on BREMEARBEREFE
investment properties 6 (87,508) (34,479)
Depreciation e 6 257,802 255,848
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FE L EER 2 #
payments 6 438 552
Net gain on disposal of items of HEWHE - BERKRHBER
property, plant and equipment gyl 6 (23,048) (2,941)
Gain on disposal of a trademark HE—EERE 6 - (152,400)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR KRR 33 (57,254) -
Reversal of provision for inventories FEEERMD 6 (6,012) (17,666)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FEUNBRFORE, CRULERSE)
of trade receivables 6 2,106 (1,061)
Impairment of BEIENRERE
held-to-maturity investments 6 10,308 -
487,250 499,840
Increase in inventories FEE (38,548) (108,051)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUR BR 31 e SEHE 3T 0 (211,166) (111,766)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FENFE -~ ST R EAEWER
deposits and other receivables TR, (3Ehm) (172,211) 249,492
Decrease in an amount due to an associate FE{JEE N TFIER D (59,279) (11,853)
Increase/(decrease) in trade FETERF R ZHEE N, CBd)
and bills payables 128,803 (143,251)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, HAu BT IR ~ EFTEER
accrued liabilities and deposit received BURET &, G2 56,063 (51,938)
Cash generated from operations REmBRE 190,912 322,473
Tax paid 2%iE (6,495) (46,331)
Net cash flows from operating activities K& FFBIRESRATEE 184,417 276,142




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2018 Bt ZF —ZE— NFE=HF=+—HI FEF

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BEFT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFTHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 FIE 74,174 81,338
Net proceeds from settlement of HEEITESR T ARUE R

derivative financial instruments 47,904 48,803
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE REKKXEER

and equipment (196,449) (200,899)
Additions to construction in progress REEEIRE 15 (59,965) (9,511)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEERE

investments (97,811) (54,250)
Net redemption of held-to-maturity BEEFZEBNREFE

investments 106,903 157,047
Net proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE - BENRBEER KA

property, plant and equipment ezt 42,615 11,519
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 33 (155) -
Decrease/(increase) REASZRSRED (350)

in long term rental deposits 33,002 (21,025)
Decrease in time and structured RETXB=EA U LZH

deposits with original maturity of 2B RABMEIFRURD

over three months when acquired 104,171 714,109
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHESRATE 54,389 727,131
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEITHEESRE

ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank borrowings i SERITER 2,026,781 7,150,036
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BEMERITER

borrowings (3,004,916) (5,456,398)
Interest paid 2FE (42,810) (26,993)
Dividends paid 2RRE (718,482) (884,286)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BMETHEESRACGRE)

activities FEE (1,739,427) 782,359
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeRBSEEY =M

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) =5 (1,500,621) 1,785,632
Cash and cash equivalents FHzRERBEEZEEY

at beginning of year 3,573,414 1,841,644
Foreign exchange adjustments INERE 26,906 (53,862)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZBEERBEEZEY

AT END OF YEAR 2,099,699 3,573,414

BRERWEWLT —T—NFH e



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8B & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2018 BiZ —ZE— NF=F=+—HI FEF

2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+F
HK$000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERAESEBEYEBRDIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BERIBITER 24 468,736 307,026
Non-pledged time and structured R B=EAREH=
deposits with original maturity of less EIRIR R EBETER
than three months when acquired 24 1,630,963 3,266,388
Non-pledged time and structured RETZB=@EAULRHZ
deposits with original maturity of EIRIR R EBETER
over three months when acquired 24 345,329 449,500
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BeREBESEEY > MER
in the consolidated statement of FE AR T
financial position 2,445,028 4,022,914

Less: Non-pledged time and structured A RETIZ B =88 ML EEIH

deposits with original maturity of ZEIRIRE R R AEEMT
over three months when acquired E& (345,329) (449,500)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BeRRSEEY - mERN
in the consolidated statement FERSRER
of cash flows 2,099,699 3,573,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. QARREEEHR

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company EXEEEERAGNAERETMR L ZER
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company BERERAR  ADR ZFEMIEEE A Clarendon
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings Bermuda ° FEXEEERR AR T EE
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing HABEEBH AT 2IGHALESSE
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. oy VAV

During the year, the Group was involved in the following RAFE  ARETELEUT X5

principal activities:

. Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; ° SRR CEER G,
. Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories; o EREEIzcZTERDH
o Provision of franchise services; and . RIBESHTEERSE &
. Properties investment. . HERE o
Information of subsidiaries B A RER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RAFZFEMBLATZEBOT -
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
business share capital Company Principal activities
MR BER BRTLE/ AN IR
EEM E2RTRA ZEfRE TEER
2018 2017
“E-N\F ZE2—tF
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Sale of finished knitted
HK$1,000 and fabric and dyed yarn
non-voting
deferred
HK$3,125,000
KERBERAR B BRERA EEHBAREY
7B1£1,0007T &
ERZEELREK

7B1#3,125,0007T

Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,857,950,000 100 100 Production, dyeing and

Garment Limited *# sale of knitted fabric
and yarn

REBKEHHHARBRAA B/ E ARE 781#2,857,950,0007 HERRBY 2 EHREL

Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Procurement of raw
(Macao Commercial Offshore) materials and sale of
Limited* knitted fabric

KERF (RMBFEERYE) B JEF9%100,0007T RERMBRHEHEH
BRAR*

BRERWEWLT —T—NFH e
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

AEIREEER (&)
WA T AR ()

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and
business

3k

registered
share capital
BRTEE/
EEERA

—B-N\F

attributable to the
Company
AN TR
ZBfRE
2018 2017
.

Principal activities

FERK

Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
services
BAEEXERAT BB BELT REEERE
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
and non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEEFBRAF BB EBRABEI0TR HENE
ERZRELERA
B2
Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100  Property holding
KETARLT BB 78#15,903,1007T HENE
Baleno Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$20,000 64 64  Investment holding and
Hong Kong retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
HEREEERAF RERLEHE/ BB 20,0007 REERRERK
e TE
Baleno Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
HeRARAT BB 78#10,0007T ERRENTERDH
Baleno Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 64 64  Retailing of casual apparel
and accessories
HEREBERNF BB BELT ERREN2EE
Guangzhou Friendship PRC/ Mainland China HK$103,800,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
Baleno Co. Ltd. *# of casual apparel and
accessories
BNGER R REPEIR L A+ PE/hE KR 7%#103,800,0007C ERRGNEERDH
EEGAIREAR A R PRC/ Mainland China RMB1,000,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution

hE/hE AR

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

AEIREBEER (&)
WE AT EE ()

Place of incorporation/

registration and
business
MR B TR
BEWY

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRAEE/
E2RTRA

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
KA R ER
ZERE

2018 2017
“§-\F  ZTtF

Principal activities

TERH

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno Garment & PRC/ Mainland China US$500,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
Decoration Co. Ltd ** of casual apparel and
accessories
LARTREREERHERAD  hE/FEARE 500,000% 7 ERR N2 TERDH
Chongging Dasheng Baleno PRC/ Mainland China HK$3,880,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
Co. Ltd ** of casual apparel and
accessories
ERARERRRBABRA A HE/ REI AR ##3,880,0007T ERRESNZZER D
Tianjin Baleno Co. Ltd *# PRC/ Mainland China RMB700,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
REMHERRENE R 7]+ HE/ REI AR AR#700,0007T ERRESNZZER D
Silver Kingdom Limited * British Virgin Islands/ US$1 64 64  Sub-letting of properties
Taiwan
REARDR* KERZHE /A 1% pagiik/ES
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100  Holding of trademarks
Mainland China and provision of
franchise services
RIBRAR KBRZ#EE/ 1% FEBERRME
PEARE SERB
Successful Channel Corporation* British Virgin Islands/ US$1 64 64  Property holding
Mainland China
MIpREEEx RBELHE/HEAE 1X5% BENE
RBAERERRAE —ZT-N\FR
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. QEIREBRER@#E)
Information of subsidiaries (continued) KB A RE R (4E)

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
business share capital Company Principal activities

ML BER BRTEE/ AAREGER
EEih BERTRA ZBHE IEER
2018
—E-N\F

AR RAERAR PRC/ Mainland China RMB1,010,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

HEREKRE AR#1,010,0007 ERREN2ZERDH

REREEBEBRAR PRC/ Mainland China RMBS5,880,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

HEREKRE AR #5,880,0007T ERREN2FERDH

BRI AR e PR D A+ PRC/ Mainland China RMB600,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

HEREKRE AR #:600,0007 ERREN2FERDH

Dalian Baleno Decoration Co. Ltd**  PRC/ Mainland China HK$2,100,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

KREREHRENERA R+ FEREARE #1#2,100,0007T ERRBGNZEER D

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm * WHAHLZKEFNNEBEEBRS —LZKE
of the Ernst & Young global network. ST BB FTEIR A E & ©

# These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprise # ZEWE R AP EEE TR EEE
under PRC law. b7

All the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. U EFEMBATISHALREERE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERAPIEARABZHMBAR » ESRAEE

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for HASEAFEZEBBRETEFESHEBAE

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the SEEEFH2ETEIND - EERBFIIHM

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion MEBARELREREARIE °

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, certain leasehold land and
buildings included in property, plant and equipment, available-
for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. Non-current assets or assets
of a disposal group held for sale are stated at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in

full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,

is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKAS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure

Initiative

HKAS 12 Amendments ~Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses

HKFRS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure

included in Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKAS 7
Amendments, the adoption of the above revised standards has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described

below:

(a)

(b)

(@]

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions
on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their
carrying amount. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group has no deductible temporary differences or assets
that are in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply
to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or included in a
disposal group classified as held for sale. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group’s financial statements as
the Group does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures classified as a disposal group held for sale as at 31
March 2018 and so no additional information is required to
be disclosed.

2.2

31 March 2018 =&
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 4 Amendments

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 Amendments

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) Amendments

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 Amendments

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 28 Amendments

HKAS 40 Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
Annual Improvement
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvement
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Financial Instruments’
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?
Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 18!

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs2
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4. No mandatory effective date determined but available for early
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below. Of those standards,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable for the Group’s financial
year ending 31 March 2019 and are expected to have a significant
impact upon adoption. Whilst management has performed an
assessment of the estimated impacts of these standards, that
assessment is based on the information currently available to the
Group, including expectations of the application of transitional
provision options and policy choices. The actual impacts upon
adoption could be different to those below, depending on
additional reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group at the time of applying the standards and
the transitional provisions and policy options finally adopted.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a certain amount in
order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with the
share-based payment; and accounting where a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.
The amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are
met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are
modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification. On
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without
restating prior periods, but retrospective application is permitted
if they elect to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria
are met. The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 April
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS
9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group will not
restate comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018. During the year, the Group performed an assessment of
the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts
relate to the classification and measurement and the impairment
requirements and are summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Investments currently held as available-for-sale
will either be measured at fair value through profit or loss
or fair value through other comprehensive income. Gains
and losses recorded in other comprehensive income for
the equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss
when the investments are derecognised. Management is in
the process of making a decision as to whether the Group's
available-for-sale investments will be measured at either
fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to
be recorded based on an expected credit loss model either
on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values of
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables and held-to-maturity investments. Furthermore,
the Group will apply the general approach and record
twelve-month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its bills and other
receivables within the next twelve months.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is required on
the initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also intended to
help ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Group will adopt HKFRS 15 from 1 April 2018.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April
2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements
only to contracts that are not completed before 1 April 2018.
The Group expects that the transitional adjustment to be made
on 1 April 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies,
as further explained below, will have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements from 2018 onwards. During the year,
the Group has performed an assessment on the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 15.

The Group's principal activities consist of the production, dyeing
and sale of knitted fabric and yarn, the retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and accessories, the provision of franchise
services and properties investment. The expected impacts arising
from the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as
follows:

(@) Variable consideration on the retailing and distribution of
casual apparel and accessories
The Group provides a right of return, trade discounts or
volume rebates for some of the sales contracts of casual
apparel and accessories. Currently, the Group recognises
revenue from the sale of goods measured at fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If
revenue cannot be reliably measured, revenue recognition
is deferred until the uncertainty is resolved. Under HKFRS
15, a transaction price is considered variable if a customer is
provided with a right of return, trade discounts or volume
rebates. The Group is required to estimate the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in the sales of its
casual apparel and accessories and the estimated amount
of variable consideration will be included in the transaction
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
The Group has decided to use the expected value method
to estimate the goods that will be returned and the amount
of volume rebates as this method better predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the Group will
be entitled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS
15 are more detailed than those under the current HKAS
18. The presentation requirements represent a significant
change from current practice and will significantly increase
the volume of disclosures required in the Group’s financial
statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
15 are new and the Group has assessed that the impact of
some of these disclosure requirements will be significant. In
particular, the Group expects that the notes to the financial
statements will be expanded because of the disclosure
of significant judgements made on determining the
transaction prices of those contracts that include variable
consideration. In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the
Group will disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts
with customers into categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by economic factors. It will also disclose
information about the relationship between the disclosure
of disaggregated revenue and revenue information
disclosed for each reportable segment.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases.

HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply
the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16
from 1 April 2019. The Group and is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will
choose to take advantage of the practical expedients available
and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As
disclosed in note 36(b) to the financial statements, at 31 March
2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$1,228,476,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts
included therein may need to be recognised as new right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be
needed to determine the amount of new rights of use assets and
lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to,
any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term
leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 40 Amendments, issued in April 2017, clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the
classification of property held at the date that it first applies the
amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the
conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how
to determine the date of the transaction when applying HKAS
21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from
the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration. Entities
may apply the interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on
a prospective basis, either from the beginning of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting period
in which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1 April
2018. The interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred
to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 April 2019. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
an associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties) the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

24 FEESHBERIBE®)

DAERRE)
FERMEENDAEBNBRETRHESEERE
BRAREERZEEEBRRERE  F¥Z
EEHETHEEAREFEAZEEZRRER
BNHMMBSEE - IEENEENS -

REBRMBEARTEIEREAET D BIEL
HETBRAARENMGERSE - UE2EAEEY
BERGABERBERIEATTEHER AR
o

FEERAUBBRTEIRENEEREE
DERHAAEFEERMEBERNRERE
BABBEUTARESRER

B—H — EREREEHEENERD
SHVRE CRERE)

Bl — EREAREREMSBERXR
NHESE(EER AR &EE
BABBNMELE S R

Bl — EREAREREMSBERXR
NTAEEREERABEN
RERE -

MBEEHERAMBERREANEERAE
ME  AREEENEREPREHTEDE
(EREAAEMEEREMSBEANRES
AEB)EERERENRDERES -

FERMEERE

AR ER R RERAREEETFER
BEAR(FE EREERREMERS) - B
SR ZEECTREEE -EEZTRE S
BRAZEERELRESEUNERAEERLA
BERHERANRSE U ERNEEME
E - RIFFREELEESE KRB LB LN EM
EESEEARNCRERA  ERERT - 7]
WEEEREEMBNREEEEMMERE

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

or

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred directly
to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the corresponding
asset is used by the Group. The amount realised is the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from
the revaluation surplus to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing
use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must
be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group
are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and accessories, cost is
determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs of
purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
instruments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are quoted investment
funds. Equity investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments is reported as interest
income and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or loss
if the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,

in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable financial liabilities included in other payables, accrued
liabilities and deposit received, an amount due to an associate,
derivative financial liabilities and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling repurchasing in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial

position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued, with the consideration allocated
to the award credits being equal to their fair value. Fair value is
determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services have been
provided;

(o) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,
over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
an associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3Rk R =E

31 March 2018 —E—1#=H=4+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on
an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Such estimates involve
consideration of the possibility and outcome of the objections to
the estimated assessment or additional assessment issued by the
tax authority with reference to similar cases. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2018 was HK$23,304,000 (2017:
HK$28,359,000). Further details are contained in note 29 to the
financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks are impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the trademarks are
related. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well-known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events or
circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful
lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of trademarks at 31
March 2018 was HK$33,293,000 (2017: HK$33,293,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2018
was HK$524,400,000 (2017: HK$459,403,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectation for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2018 was HK$2,237,568,000 (2017: HK$2,050,435,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances for trade receivables

Impairment allowances for trade receivables are based on
the assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables. The
identification of impairment allowances requires management
judgement and estimates, based on the age of the balance,
recent historical payments, existence of disputes, and any other
available information concerning the creditworthiness of the
counterparties. Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimate, such differences
will have an impact on the carrying values of the receivables and
impairment or its reversal in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of trade receivables at 31
March 2018 was HK$941,418,000 (2017: HK$665,388,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn
segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and properties investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except gain on disposal of a trademark,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated corporate expenses,
interest income, finance costs and share of loss of an associate are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time and structured deposits, an
investment in an associate and deferred tax assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., EEIEER@)

Production, Retailing and distribution
dyeing and sale of of casual apparel and
knitted fabric and yarn accessories Eliminations Consolidated

HARRRYZERRER ERRHNZTERDH ; Faf 548

218 017 2018 217 2018 2017 2018 2017
BN ZE-tF C®-\F CRtF RN ZR-tF CR-\F ZB-tF S8 F R AR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'00D  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS00  HKS'000
BETr  BETn BEFa BRTaL BRFn B¥Tn BETn BRTn BRFAL BEFa

Segment revenue: AEUA:
Sales to external customers ETNRER 4534790 3806760 3988977 4,044,197 7,039 7519 - - 8530806 7858476
Intersegment sales PEEZHE - - - - 1M 6,317 g2 (6317) - -
Other revenue Rt A 86,560 59,903 37,151 1322 123722 70,508 (6,984) (6,468) 241,055 131,265
4621350 3,866,663 4,026,734 4,051,519 138,032 84,344 (14255)  (12,785) 8,771,861 7,989,741
Segment results B 240,753 349,674 14,094 (95772) 129,407 74,009 - - 384254 32791
Reconciliation: ETil
Gain on disposal of atrademark ~ HE-BEKE - 152400
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARNE 57,254 -
Unallocated expenses KORER (4,008) (6:827)
Interest income FEHA 76,289 81,338
Finance costs BBER (428100  (26,993)
Share of loss of an associate N |57 (3.121) (1112
Profit before tax BB AnER] 467858 520,057
Income tax expense #E (151,108)  (13,521)
Profit for the year RERHT 316750 506,536
Segment assets AEEE 4983816 4104125 1915374 1,977,840 557,719 502,149 (316,785)  (428,139) 7,140,124  6,155975
Reconciliation: il
Investment in an associate REELFZRE 70582 75243
Unallocated assets FREE 2,009,101 3,744,247
Total assets BEE 9,219,807 9,975,465
Segment liabilities HEEE 670,405 723,180 937,085 731317 23,750 84,018 (49.462)  (160,817) 1,581,778 1,377,698
Reconciliation: Eii
Unallocated liabilities FIBEE 1913040 2,700,364
Total liabilities B8k 3,494,818 4,078,062
Other segment information: EfngEs
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 169,877 168,653 88,363 85,038 - 2,709 - - 258240 256,400
Capital expenditure* BT 162,397 142,528 94,017 73,079 - - - - 256414 215,607
Provision/(reversal of provision) &/ (2EEE)
of inventories (3,900) 1,700 (2112 (18,426) - (940) - - (6,012)  (17,666)
Impairment/(reversal RUEHHE/ (AERE)
of impairment) of
trade receivables - - 2,106 (1,061) - - - - 2,106 (1,061)
Net fair value gains on REMELABRERE
investment properties - - - - (87508) (34479 - - (87,508)  (34479)

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and  * BHAMZHEEREYE  MERZERIEZETRE -
equipment and construction in progress.
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, ZEIEER @)
Geographical information i3 & R
The following table presents geographical revenue and non- THRAKNERRZ-_E—-N\EF=A=+—80K
current assets information of the Group for the years ended 31 —E—trtE=ZA=t—HILEEZHEHIKAR
March 2018 and 31 March 2017: FIRBEEER

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
S REKE ik B i i #e
018 017 018 017 018 017 018 2017 018 017 018 017 018 017

SE-NE CEtE CENE SR CR-0E CR-AF ZR-NF CRtF CENE SRt CE-0F SRR CENE ZE-4F

HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
AEFr  BEFT BEFT BEFn BEFT BEFL BEFR AT A¥TT  BEFT BEET A

Revenue fromexternal ~~ $EEFUA

ustomers MO TN 43506 40BI0 BB KIS 100008 805 16U 14T - - 85806 785476

Non-current assets: FRBEE - - 1671962 1454005 - - 65664 SB4599 49116 54820 (14559  (134776) 2236161 1,958,648
The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets REBEMIGWARFERDEEER (TEBER
information, excluding long term rental deposits, long term HiEeEe  REEZIHMNKRE  IHEE
held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale investments and BREREEBBEEE) DDRREBENESREE
deferred tax assets are based on the locations of the markets and ZFrTEh 2 4E o

assets, respectively.

Information about major customers FEEFZER
No single external customer (2017: Nil) contributed more than RER  BEE—IIAFF(ZE—+LF : 8)
10% to the Group's revenue during the year. R AL R EBAIUIA10% L L -

BRERWEWLT —T—NFH @
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

©

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts; the value of services

rendered and franchise and royalty income.

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue:
Sale of goods
Rendering of services
Franchise and royalty income

Other income and gains:

Interest income

Net fair value gains on derivative financial
instruments (note 23)

Rental income on investment properties

Compensation from suppliers for
defective goods

Net gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Government subsidies

Net fair value gains on investment properties

(note 13)
Sundry income

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

5. WA~ EiA R WS
WAENMBREERESITNAZHERETF
& MRS NEENSTEYS REAK

A e

WA -

HEER

RIEIRTE

B RS RERRA

HABWA R Wz

FIISVLON
TEERIT AN RERE
FE(Rrat23)
REWMFHEERA
RAEEGSHERRE

HENHE - BERREBEE WE

Pt

BURFHBBI SR

REMFEL AERSFHE
(R1a13)

3L ON

WA~ B AR WS RT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$000
BEFIT BETT
8,513,554 7,833,928
10,741 17,612
6,511 6,936
8,530,806 7,858,476
76,289 81,338
47,082 21,497
26,981 29,133
11,405 6,283
23,048 2,941
4,846 12,144
87,508 34,479
40,185 24,788
317,344 212,603
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BEFER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEZBBALERE R (nt) :
(crediting):
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
EETFT BT T
Cost of inventories sold# 2EEWZ A 5,912,886 5,367,362
Depreciation e 12 257,802 255,848
Amortisation of prepaid land FEf T HE R 2 EH
lease payments 14 438 552
Employee benefit expenses, EERTMYX  BFESMN

including directors’ and senior SREEAEME(MiE7) -
management’s remuneration

(note 7):
Wages, salaries I - HekHEMER
and other allowances 1,379,385 1,313,211
Retirement benefit EREFETEIMHR
scheme contributions 6,766 5,737
1,386,151 1,318,948
Minimum lease payments under  E&HEET 2Lt RET
operating leases in respect of REESEAR
land and buildings 428,514 385,882
Contingent rents under operating &&HET 2HAREE
leases 334,549 483,847
763,063 869,729
Gain on disposal of a trademark** & —BgE g E** - (152,400)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET N & 2,718 2,767
Foreign exchange differences, net [E 5 Ut 5458 (37,527) (46,884)
Net fair value gains on investment REYERD REUNES HEE*
properties* 13 (87,508) (34,479)
Gross rental income REYHEBES M ALEE
on investment properties* (26,981) (29,133)
Less: direct operating expenses B BEEERY 2,054 1,947
Net rental income AW FEE (24,927) (27,186)
Reversal of provision for inventories 7 & 2{&# 0l (6,012) (17,666)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FEWBRZURE, ~CRUERE ) *
of trade receivables* 22 2,106 (1,061)
Impairment of held-to-maturity BFZEIHNRERE
investments* 19 10,308 -
Net gain on disposal of items of HEME - BER
property, plant and equipment*  R{&1E B U HEE (23,048) (2,941)

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. PERBLATER &)

# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$550,077,000 (2017: # EEEYZHAFEITEBE LKL - i
HK$521,027,000) of staff costs, depreciation, minimum lease B KEHETZREHEARFEERF
payments under operating leases and reversal of provision for B2 B # 550,077,000 (= E—+F  B#
inventories which are also included in the respective total amounts 521,027,0005T ) TF /R X L & FE & Ry A8 88
disclosed above for each of these types of expenses. HFE o

* These items are included in the “Other operating expenses, * ZEBAEHA G B R AL EE
net”/”Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated o JEEE | TREMKA RS I -

statement of profit or loss.

**  During the prior year, a trademark was disposed of at a > REFR  —ERELBE 152,400,000 (1B
consideration of HK$152,400,000, which was settled by a deposit HE  LEWTEEE °
received.

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EEMEREEAEMERANES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SES

EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration EEME

Directors’ remuneration paid for the year, disclosed pursuant to #ZEmBAA - BB D E M EE383(1)) -
the Listing Rules, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong ) (OROBERAT(HREESARER )R
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BISE—E » REEINEEMES 2 IHENT -

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2018 2017
—2-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Fees: weE
Executive directors HITES 30 20
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES 1,395 1,320
1,425 1,340
Other emoluments: Hiui & -
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIFESERN 24,881 23,567
Performance related bonuses* RIBEMFEAL* 41,400 58,900
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRERET B TR 27 18
66,308 82,485
67,733 83,825

* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary ~— * RRATHITEEZETEBAL A EBRGTEEE

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the 1B FIHIE F B EEBEE S (1R BH AL ° E
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The 1T EER R BRI ALERIE FEEZEREF
performance related bonuses paid to each director was determined BEREFZEEET -

with reference to the performance of the director and the results of
the Group of last year.
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EZNSRECEAEMERAENVES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID HMES &)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEWE(E)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUHHITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNSZNFHEUFPITESZ2HE
during the year were as follows: mr

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Au Son Yiu EHR 465 440
Cheng Shu Wing I SES 465 440
Law Brian Chung Nin EhE 465 440
1,395 1,320
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER TE(-ZE—+&F @) a5y
independent non-executive directors during the year (2017: EHITEE T EMENS o
Nil).
(b)  Executive directors (b) HITEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e 2R RINER
ok FREEN REHBEAL STEIHR MewE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BY T BYTT
2018 —E-N\E
Poon Bun Chak EWE 10 15,540 28,800 - 44,350
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 8,134 10,000 18 18,162
Poon Ho Tak (appointed on  EAB(K=F—tF
1 October 2017) FH—HEZ) 10 1,207 2,600 9 3,826
30 24,881 41,400 27 66,338
2017 —E—tF
Poon Bun Chak EWE 10 15,707 44,000 - 59,717
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 7,860 14,900 18 22,788
20 23,567 58,900 18 82,505
* The performance related bonuses paid to each director * EffEEFZ KRB YEALERE
was determined with reference to the performance of the FEEZEECREREE EEE
director and the results of the Group of last year. E o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived I IMEEFAF N E SR B EE AT
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. Ealink-¢z X

BRERWEWLT —T—NFH @
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

7.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration

Senior management’s remuneration for the year were within the

following bands:

EENEfEBEAEMERANES
FiMNES (@)

EREBAEME
TEEEEXNESREBAEMEBR TIIEH
:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 T Z7##2,000,0007T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 753,000,001 T Z7##3,500,0007T 1 3
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 743,500,001 T £ 7##4,000,0007T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 757,000,001 T Z7##7,500,0007T 1 -
4 3

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2017: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in the “Directors’ remuneration” section above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2017: three)
highest paid employees who are not directors of the Company are
as follows:

URSHMES
rERNAUBSFMESRFE =L (=2 -+
FIMMES  AHHBAACHRULNE
EME IR - BTMU(ZZE—tF : =W &
SHMES (KX RN TES) NAFEHHN
BT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIRSEF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRAKER 2R

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

2018 2017
—E2-N\F == —tF
HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BT
10,600 10,268

36 54

10,636 10,322

FEERXNFESRSHIEEMSERT
HgE

Number of employees

2018
—E2-N\F
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 753,000,001 7T B #£3,500,0007T - 3
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 753,500,001 7T £ 8% 4,000,0007T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 787,000,001 7c %8 %7,500,0007T 1 -
2 3
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FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Current - Hong Kong and Mainland China:

Charge for the year AN A
Under-provision in prior years* EEEREBTRE
Deferred (note 29) PRI (f1a£29)
Total tax charge for the year REEFHBEBEET
* Included in the balance of under-provision in prior years for

the year ended 31 March 2018 was additional tax provision of
HK$138,059,000 made in current year in relation to tax affairs as
detailed in note 35(b) to the financial statements.

RE-FBRAPEARE

31 March 2018 =E—NFE=H=+—A
MHE R

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—ZT—tF
HK$°000
BT T

26,993

HK$'000
BT

42,810

BiIR
BRFEHERFARE BRI G5 ERH
BN AR ER16.5% (= F—15F : 16.5%) 2
A o EEMENERFISHIE - DIRER
EEXBREMERERBR 2 RTHETH -

2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—t%
HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BT
84,222 39,247
138,790 931
(71,904) (26,657)
151,108 13,521

* REBEZ-_ZFE-NF=ZF=+—HIFEHF
FEBETEZGT  BIEBEEFIRE
IR Z M TF35(0) By Bl iE BER A FHIZEIN B
B 58 1138,059,000T °

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

BiEm)
RRAAAAREHBARAN LI EREZR
BATRFINE R ER RS 2 BB A E
EREBEHERERGHT

tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

©

the effective tax rate is as follows:

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
BHF T

HK$’000
BT

Profit before tax FREADEF 467,858 520,057
Tax at the statutory tax rates R ERERNTIE 81,806 81,715
Adjustments in respect of current tax of MEFENSHHRERZE

previous years 138,790 931
Share of loss of an associate FEEEE N REE 515 1,282
Income not subject to tax BEHB 2 WA (120,474) (115,603)
Expenses not deductible for tax FAMERIER 2 & A 40,201 56,583
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable FiZ<&E BB A 7w H5 R

profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries EANFEINRENSE 5,447 (4,565)
Unrecognised tax losses RIERBIIEEE 17,722 24,522
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EEABTHEzHIEREIE (10,055) (5,869)
Recognition of deferred tax assets BRIELERIEEE - (28,359)
Others Hit (2,844) 2,884
Tax charge for the year REERIER 151,108 13,521

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to
HK$1,055,000 (2017: HK$3,781,000) is included in “Share of loss of

an associate “ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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10. DIVIDENDS

11.

Interim dividend — HK20.0 cents

10.

31 March 2018 —®—\F=f=1—H
R E

2018 2017
=B-N\F —

HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BETT

PHIRE - BREBREE20.01L

(2017: HK30.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—t5F @ B¥30.01L) 276,339 414,509

Proposed final dividend — HK15.0 cents BORREARR B — SR E BB 15.01L
(2017: HK32.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—t5F : B¥32.01L) 207,254 442,143
483,593 856,652

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,381,696,104 (2017: 1,381,696,104) during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

1.

REERIK 2 RPREEFRDBARRNEE
BOWRRBFRGLES -

BEALAREERENEESRAERN

EXGRBANEAQAEEEGMEE
BEZEFESNRREZFACHTEER
1,381,696, 1041 (= F—+F : 1,381,696,104
) Z IS I BB &

AEEBRBE-_ZE-N\ER=-ZE—tE=A
=+ —-HLEFERATED RITHEE S| B
EHEER -

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BEREE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and and office  vehicles and
buildings  improvements machinery  equipment yacht Total

B %BR
BELHRET HERTRE BERER  BOERE  RERER CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBFT BEFR BETT Vot BT BEFT

31 March 2018 “E-N\E=ZfA=1+-H
At 1 April 2017: W=B-tEmA-F
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,174,257 793,686 2,908,127 231,748 95,663 5,203,481
Accumulated depreciation and ZIHTERAE
impairment (645,605) (706,921) (2,260,732) (207,148) (69,387) (3,889,793)
Net carrying amount ERFE 528,652 86,765 647,395 24,600 26,276 1,313,688

At 1 April 2017, net of accumulated ~ R=ZE—+FMA-H -

depreciation and impairment EHBEHTERAE 58,652 86,765 647,395 24,600 26276 1313688
Additions RE 1,338 83,566 92,002 12,778 6,765 196,449
Disposals HE - (601) (12,790) (585) (1,713) (15,689)
Depreciation provided during ERITEERE(Hi6)

the year (note 6) (46,467) (80,927) (112,777) (9,5%) (8,035) (257,802)
Transfer from investment properties  EEREME(f713)

(note 13) 24,900 - - - - 24,900
Transfer from construction in progress BEER TR (#:#15)

(note 15) - - 2,568 - - 2,568
Foreign exchange adjustments MERE 45,962 7,110 65479 2,075 1733 122,359

At 31 March 2018, net of accumulated R=Z-NE=A=+-R -

depreciation and impairment EHBEHTERAE 554,385 95,913 681,877 29212 506 1386473
At 31 March 2018: RZE-NFZA=+-H:
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,306,998 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,858,812
Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE
impairment (752,613) (841,199) (2,571,886) (228,380) (78,261) (4,472,339)
Net carrying amount REFE 554,385 95,913 681,877 29,272 25,026 1,386,473
Analysis of cost or valuation: B EE -
At cost A 1,293,396 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,845,210
At 31 March 1992 valuation R-ANZE=A=1-H
ffE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,306,998 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,858,812
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31 March 2017
At 1 April 2016:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2016, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided during the
year (note 6)

Surplus on revaluation

Transfer to investment properties
(note 13)

Transfer from construction in progress
(note 15)

Transfer to non-current assets held
for sale (note 25)

Transfer to a disposal group held for
sale (note 25)

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2017, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

At 31 March 2017:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

Analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost
At 31 March 1992 valuation

—E-tF=f=+-A

RZB-~ENA-RB:
RS EE
SHERAE

REZFE

R-B-~FEA-H"
ENRZHTERAE

HE

hE

ERirEERHZ6)

EftRt
BERANRWE13)

BAREIR(H215)

BENRANENARDEE
(Hz25)

EENEARENNEAEE
(Hz25)

HNERR

R=B—tEZ/=1-8"
BHREHRERAE

RZB—tE=H=1-R:
FASE
SHTERAE

RE#E

RASEN -
A
R-MAZ#=A=1-H
e

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Leasehold

land and
buildings

HK$'000
BETT

12.

Leasehold
improvements

BETHRET BERTRE

HK$'000
BETT

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

M BERRZE @)

Furniture,
Motor
vehicles and
yacht

fixtures
Plant and and office

machinery  equipment Total
B RER
WAERME
HK$000

Vit

HEREH
HK$'000
ABTT

AER R /%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

1267955 78290 3056867 252903 9BET0 5460687
682389 691170 (BL0) 31038 (1272 (4032884)
609,717 B2 675697 21,869 2398 1427803
609,717 B2 675697 21,869 7398 1427803

: maa 109018 13,086 958 206,0%

(03) @ (6,035) (366) (1,230) (8,578
wsses) (675 (113164 (8510) 6259  (255849)
4,09 . : : : 409
(5,00) - : ; : (5,000
8119 - 23,53 1 ; 31,669
(3,878 - : : ; (3,878
(2,589) - : : ; (2,589)
(31955) @) (a1660) (1,190) (118)  (30,03)
528,652 86765 647395 2,600 %276 1313688

7257 19368 2908127 231748 95663 5203481
65605  (06%21)  (26073) Q07148 (69387)  (3889793)
528,652 86765 647,395 2,600 %276 1313688

1160655 79368 2908127 231748 95663 5189879

13,602 - - ; ; 13,602

74257 793686 2008127 231748 95663 5,203,481

BAEEEERLT —T—N\EH @
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
During the year, a building with a carrying amount of
HK$24,900,000 was transferred from investment properties to
property, plant and equipment since the date of change in use.
Such building was revalued at the date of change in use based
on a valuation performed by the directors with reference to the
value of adjacent properties at an aggregate open market value
of HK$24,900,000 based on its existing use.

In the prior year, a building was transferred to investment
properties since the date of change in use. Such building was
revalued at the date of change in use based on a valuation
performed by the directors with reference to the value of
adjacent properties at an aggregate open market value of
HK$5,044,000 based on its then existing use. A revaluation surplus
of HK$4,090,000 resulting from the above valuation was credited
to asset revaluation reserve.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since
1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$2,715,000 (2017: HK$3,151,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REFREE
DA EERA R FE (A Te)
#y(R)0%E - BERRE

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Net gain from fair value adjustments (note 6)
Transfer from/(to) property, plant and

equipment (note 12) (K1aE12)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMNERE
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE
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13.

M BERSKE®E)

RER » —BREEHB%24,900,000THETF
HBAZERRARENEEAYE BE
REE ZRFENRESSBMOMELIRE
BERAZNEZRAEAZEEEHZEAMTS
B1{E;8%524,900,0007T °

REFR  —EBFRNEARERREARE
ME - ZEFENESSRIBAMELIZER
BRABRNEZBARACZEREGHZAHMSE
{B/E#5,044,0007T - B LB IEEZE
R BE84,090,000 T T A B EE G
A o

BOPHEELHREFBR-ANZFES
VEXMGEMETEMR - AREBE-N A=
Fe WERHHASIHREFHRE—SE
HEE AAEEREBEERE1657Y
#  BERREFOARBEMRI - #%5H
HBUBRMMEARNYE - BEREREEN
RASRBAEEM - ZSHET B RETFRE
SEREARRETEIR - HREAERN RSB
2,715,000t (==& —+ : j#B#¥3,151,0007T) °

REYRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
459,403 416,734
87,508 34,479
(24,900) 5,044
2,389 3,146
524,400 459,403
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with carrying values of HK$467,535,000
(2017: HK$405,880,000), HK$43,608,000 (2017: HK$48,479,000)
and HK$13,257,000 (2017: HK$5,044,000) are situated in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and Mainland China, respectively. The Group's
investment properties consist of one (2017: one) commercial
property, twelve (2017: thirteen) industrial properties, one
(2017: one) residential property and two (2017: two) car park
lots in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Mainland China. The directors of
the Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of three classes of assets, i.e., commercial, industrial and
residential, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each

property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2018 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified valuers. The
investment properties in Taiwan were revalued on 31 March 2018
based on valuation performed by Colliers International Valuation
(Taiwan) & Co., an independent professionally qualified valuer.
The investment property in Mainland China was revalued on 31
March 2018 based on a valuation performed by the directors
with reference to the value of adjacent properties. Each year, the
Company'’s board of directors decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s financial controller has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 36(a) to the financial statements.
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REWE #)

BRI {8 558 % 467,535,000 0 (= F —t F :
78 & 405,880,000 T ) - & ® 43,608,000 T
(ZZ—+ 5 : B#48,479,0007T) K& 8
13,257,000 7T (=& — t F : #¥5,044,000
T NRENES IREE - BERTFEX
fE o REMBEMEBENNEE  AERF
Bl ARPEZ1EEEEF(ZZ—HF 118 ~ 12
BIEEF(ZZ—tF 136/ » 1{EE=EY
2(CE—tFE 1A REEM(ZZ—+F
2{8) o IRIBEREMEZME « BHEKER -
KAREERYUBRENERE=EEEENA
o BEERT IEEFRESYE -

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—H  AREBHRE
VEBHBEREXER 2B BMERITET
B o RSE-—NFZA=+—H  URAE
MIREMERBERERER BB
BT B EMEMSS SHITETEM - LR
HEAENRENERESSRIPOIMEN =
ZE-NFZA=ZT-AZEEETHE BF
AT EETEREREAIBEEMEEHA
EBZREMFETINGGE - BEER 22
BERHEMSAR  BE  BUMRESHER
BB o ANEE 2 WBBEMGEERR KA
BERBF AN ERFEMBRREFEGE
RPAEATESER ©

REMEDUEEHOBETE=E - FHER
BRI B RMIEE36(a)
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWXE#®)
Fair value hierarchy AREZER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAEPFREEREVEN DI AETFESR

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
REZZB-NFZA=Z+—HHQAEFHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX -V )

RIER ATEREMN BEr

TiZHRE [TPN ¢ [TPN ¢4
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—#%) (F=#&) (B=#&%) B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T EETFT EBETFT BT T

Recurring fair value BUTEEEENDIAE
measurement for: HE

Commercial property BEEF - - 43,608 43,608
Industrial properties TH#EF - - 467,535 467,535
Residential property e - 13,257 - 13,257

- 13,257 511,143 524,400

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
REZEB—tF=ZA=Z+—HORIAEHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BXR BARTA

IR R ATEEMN BN

TiEHHRE WASE [P ¢4
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (=) (BB=4%) PR
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BHEFT BT B FT B F T

Recurring fair value MUTEEEENARE
measurement for: e

Commercial property BEEF - - 48,479 48,479
Industrial properties TEETF - - 405,880 405,880
Residential property FEME - 5,044 - 5,044

- 5,044 454,359 459,403
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13.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

13.
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REWME #)
DREERF)
ER S-RRAE-RHLEFMALE
HEMEER FTEAESREAREL (=

Commercial Industrial

property properties

[SEL: E2 T¥EF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BEFT

Carrying amount at 1 April 2016 R-ZE—ARFHA—BRAE 49,264 367,470

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments DAERENNE (EE)FE (3,931) 38,410

Foreign exchange adjustments SMNERE 3,146 -
Carrying amount at 31 March 2017 and RZZE—+F=A=+—-HBEK

at 1 April 2017 —E—t+tFMA-BEREE 48,479 405,880

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments NAREFARNWNE (BB )R8 (7,260) 86,555

Transfer to property, plant and equipment HMEBEYE  MERRE - (24,900)

Foreign exchange adjustments INE TR 2,389 -

Carrying amount at 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=ZA=+—HEKHEE 43,608 467,535

EXkEREFRAT —Z-N\FH
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques

HER %

Significant unobservable inputs

BEATARENBARE

BEWE®)
DAREZR(E)

LT BREVEGEMANGEEREREER

ANBUERIMIE -

Industrial properties
located in Hong
Kong:

NREBNTXET :

Commercial property
located in Taiwan:

TREENERET

Income approach

Income approach

W%

Discounted cash flow
approach
BRBEREE

Passing rent (per sq.ft. and
per month)

BRBES(EFIRREA)

Market rent (per sq.ft. and
per month)

mHRE(EFLRREA)

Term yield

HEkE=

Market yield

TEE

Passing rent (per sq.ft. and
per month)

BRBS(EFIRREAR)

Market rent (per sq.ft. and
per month)

mERE(EFLRRES)

Term yield

HEkE=

Market yield

mislEE

Estimated rental value

(per s.q.ft. and per month)
RS BEEFIRRES)

Rent growth rate (p.a.)
HERRE(GFE)

Long term vacancy rate
Discount rate

BR=

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

HK$6.1 to HK$22.0

BE6ATERR2.07

HK$8.0 to HK$22.0

BH8.0TER]2.01
1.6% t0 5.5%

3.3% t0 4.2%

HK$6.5 to HK$14.5

B¥6.5TZEE¥145T
HK$7.3 to HK$11.3

BBI3TEREN3T
29.0% to 33.0%

36.0% to 40.0%

HK$6.5 to HK$14.5

B¥6.5TZEE¥145T
1.1%

0.0% to 5.0%

3.2%

HK$5.3 to HK$21.0

BESITEBE21.0T

HK$8.0 to HK$23.0

BHB.0TEBE23.01T
3.0% t0 4.0%

3.0% to 4.3%

HK$6.4 to HK$15.4

64T EE¥15.4T
HK$6.9 to HK$10.8

6.9 EBE10.8TT
29.0% t0 32.0%

35.0% to 38.0%

HK$6.4 to HK$15.4

64T EE¥15.4T
1.1%

0.0% to0 5.0%

3.2%
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The passing rentals of the investment properties are assessed and
capitalised at term yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The passing rents are assessed with reference to the
tenancy agreement of the investment properties. The term yield,
which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made with reference to
the yields derived from analysing the leasing and sale transactions
of properties and adjusted to take account of the valuers’
knowledge of the passing expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

The key inputs were the passing rent and the term yield, which
a significant increase/decrease in the passing rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties and a significant increase/decrease in
the term yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease/
increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

Discounted cash flow approach

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value.
This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally
separately determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is
a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent
and commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the
projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.
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REWME #)

DREERF)

Woas %k

BIEWEE  AABEREEHESRARIER
(R R (T AT o

REMEFNRBRS R BN EREEAHH
TERERFELBTER - HETIURED
FEMBNBSETHME - DBWERDBAN
BERERR - DEBOMENYEEEREE
REMERAERTE Y EEMENERE
EHMSHEBNREELPE - LURRAEE

FTEHARBARAHEESREBRER - MR
BHSBREAEEN R SEHBURENE
DABRIEBIEZM,FHD - fNEH KR EEE
KIgHEM, WA SEHBIREMEDLREKRE
WD, 180 o

HRBRTRE%

REMRRSREE  DABMGTDRAEE
EstHEERZIERNANEREBNRR
(BERHEERKILEE) ETGE  ZFE
BREYEREN—ERRTRBOTER - ™
SOTAE IR R ARNFENR SR BERE
VEEERBNWSERNRE - REKSERE
EREERERETENERE -

RERENFERBRAAFNRLENAR
RETDHENESER BOEERERE
B BRYBREEMRE BENSER
BEmSTH(BYEERN—EFE)ZE -
EMRERELBNENREE - TAERE
A WERIEK  HERE - BEER - LEA
REEARAEMEENERER - Z—EHTE
HEEW N FE - EREFTRENRAERN
RILEEMGTSHE  BRERE-

R HESEERTSHSFIEREE B NIRE
R A S ERIRE Y EN D AEKRIEIEM,
D o REZEXRRINREEFRIELM,
DERERREWENDFERBRD G0
—RME - BEFTHESEEFHNRENED
SERHSFRRERBRAEHREMS G
BREHFRPEEZHRR @B
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. FEASLHEER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year RELREE 13,396 20,988
Amortised during the year (note 6) FNEEE (f6) (438) (552)
Transfer to assets of a disposal group HEEABEAFENEE
held for sale (note 25) HEEE (Mt25) - (6,599)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE 558 (441)
Carrying amount at end of year RERREE 13,516 13,396
Current portion included in prepayments, RENE D EIERTELRIE -
deposits and other receivables AT RAEMERRERA (448) (663)
Non-current portion JEMENEB 1D 13,068 12,733
15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. #HEIR
2018 2017
—B-N\#F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At beginning of year RELD 27,018 51,610
Additions NE 59,965 9,511
Transfer to property, plant and EHEYE - BERRE
equipment (note 12) (Krat12) (2,568) (31,669)
Foreign exchange adjustments SN F 28 4,060 (2,434)
At end of year RER 88,475 27,018
16. TRADEMARKS 16. BHE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —B—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Cost and carrying amount AR IREE 33,293 33,293
Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because BERRAEEESEAFHEBEHNZRE
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net ENERTESPELRSTRA

cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives EREAFHHENRENR

Trademark is allocated to the retailing and distribution of casual BEEIREERRHN2ZERIHREE
apparel and accessories cash-generating unit for impairment EENERER -

testing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

TRADEMARKS (continued)

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
(continued)

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method calculated
based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior
management. The fair value of the trademarks was equal to the
future royalty savings resulting from ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, royalty saving rate, sales annual growth
rate and discount rate used in the annual impairment testing of
trademarks with indefinite useful lives is as follows:

Royalty saving rate 1.5%
Sales annual growth rate 3.0%
Long term growth rate 3.0%
Pre-tax discount rate 12.0%

Sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty saving rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers
typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rate used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.
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B E)
R FHEENRENRE)

ESERATHEENEESFUENELEE
BESHEEABRENTFRERBIET -
AR ARBERENERZEEMBE AR
HRE -

ARESFERAEHEEEEREIRNEER
B ENBHEER  HEFERERBERN
T

ENEHEE 1.5%
HEFRERE 3.0%
REERE 3.0%
BiRTALEIR = 12.0%

FRANEEFERRATRUBBNFIFER
= WDERUEREREEEHMSEREN
a8 -

FANENEHERTIZRER-—REMZE
BEMXNNAILELEERBBENER -
FRAH BRI R T BRI i RABBE (L S E R

PEEZTRHERNVEEEIMEEAREFE -2 -
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. RBEQAT2RE
2018 2017
—E-N\F =
HK$000 HK$000
BYTFT BT T
Share of net assets EhEETRE 70,582 75,243
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BE QAT 2ERMT :

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation attributable
issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activity
SRR R AEEELER
BHENERITROER EXEHE Bp®E FEEK
Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong/Mainland 50 Manufacture of
("Megawell”) China and Vietnam garments
FESEBARARTERED BER &8 HE KRR RRARERE
The Group’s shareholding in Megawell comprise equity shares TEEREENEREFEBEBALAR—2E%
held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. BB RRFERAER - BEANEERK
Megawell is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the EENRBEB ML IREREAR o
manufacture of garments and is accounted for using the equity
method.
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TREHIHAEEMS L FEANBEE DR 2
Group's associate that is not material: AR

2018 2017
—E-N\F L
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYFT BHF T
Share of the associate’s loss and total AREFEREBENTEER
comprehensive loss for the year 2HEEE (3,121) (7,772)
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment ~ AEBEREL AT 2
in the associate REREE 70,582 75,243
18. DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 18. BENHE QT
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and FES B A B ER IR - R B R ARG
repayable on agreed credit terms. BREFIEFR o
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19. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Listed bonds, at amortised cost

31 March 2018 —&E—E=HA=+—H
19. BEIHNKRE

2018
—2-N\F

2017
—g—tf
HK$°000
BEFT

HK$000
BT

EHES - RO EHERAE

- Hong Kong —B8

— Elsewhere —Hfthith &
Impairment R
Non-current portion IERENERD
Current portion TENER D

At 31 March 2018, the investments had an aggregate nominal
value of HK$377,110,000 (2017: HK$484,182,000), and bore
interest at rates ranging from 3.38% to 8.75% (2017: 3.50% to
8.75%) per annum. The amortised cost of the held-to-maturity
investments was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount.

The movements in provision for impairment of held-to-maturity
investments are as follows:

At beginning of year READ
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) WEEEERR (ffite)
At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of held-to-
maturity investments is a provision for an individually impaired
held-to-maturity investment of HK$10,308,000 with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$10,308,000. The individually
impaired held-to-maturity investment relates to a bond issuer
that was in financial difficulties and was in default in interest
and principal payments and the entire balance is expected to be
irrecoverable.

304,665 390,840
73,966 94,694
378,631 485,534
(10,308) -
368,323 485,534
(156,902) (220,003)
211,421 265,531

AZE-N\E=ZA=+—R0  ZSRENET
E{E 5B %377,110,000 T (= —+F : &
#5484,182,0007T) @ FRIEH3.38% E8.75%
(ZZ—+5F :3.50%F8.75%) ° IFEFHH
REZEBHERANTENIRIBEANSE
WECEEBENAS B LsBEEREER
RAEABERASHEINASECEZEHENE
SHEEERATE o

FEIPWRERERBRNEZBNT -

pIE:
—E-N\F

HK$000

2017
—E—tF
HK$000

B TT

BHEFT

10,308 -

10,308 -

£ LS ZRHNREREREREEYE -8
SRENSZERHNREREEY10,308,000
7T - HEREE A8% 10,308,000t  Z{ERIE
BENBZIHNERESRTETANERAS
Rk EVERENESRTE  Z2WEER
HEFEEAT AU E -
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AHHBERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$000
BYTFT BHF T
Quoted investment funds, at fair value BRENREES  2RE 85,821 54,250
Quoted debt investments, at fair value BERENEERE  ARE 66,240 -
152,061 54,250

21. INVENTORIES 21. B8

2018 2017
—E2-N\F == —tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BYFT JBHF T
Raw materials =Rl 804,213 777,804
Work in progress et 82,453 67,102
Finished goods R 1,231,346 1,108,425
Consumables FERYR 119,556 97,104
2,237,568 2,050,435

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 22. FEWERR » ANRE - FIe R HME

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES W BR X
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$000
EBETT JBHF T
Trade receivables FEWERTR 954,380 676,244
Impairment B (12,962) (10,856)
941,418 665,388
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEFUE » 3] & R EAEURBRTX 773,829 596,319
Less: non-current portion: W FERENEBD
- long-term prepayments —REpFENFE (119,870) (37,270)
— long-term rental deposits -REHESES (87,183) (112,776)
Current portion BN 566,776 446,273
Except for trade receivables as detailed below, none of the above FRT SCRE R FEWER RSN - IR EEEE E
assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included HASRRE - RLEMET € REMEWERFAE P
in the above deposits and other receivables balances relate to BRI 5 & TH B A AT B I R HE R Y A SR
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. FEURBRSX ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trades with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group's trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
impairment of HK$12,962,000 (2017: HK$10,856,000), is as
follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

90HIK
90HU £

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

22,

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

EWERR - ANRE - sT& R HME
WBRRR (&)
AEEERFIEEMA ERAE IZIRER
90K | HREE ARG RS AREA
EEETRS - AEEYRERTEEE—ER
BESHENEREERR - ARAEEER
EREEBRSES  ALUESAMNEEESD
BB o AE B E A H W IR R A IS
IR RS E AR THE A 2 AR o ERER R
HE o

RBEHR  RBEAHRIORBERE
12,962,000t (= —+ 4 : j8% 10,856,000
TO) B ZBEBRIRR IR AT

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
BYFT BHF T
767,234 606,928
174,184 58,460
941,418 665,388

FEWSRFORERBHNZBINT

2018
—B-N\F

HK$000
BT

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
BT

At beginning of year RELD] 10,856 11,917
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FEW R SRRE, CRIERE)

of trade receivables (note 6) (Hiate) 2,106 (1,061)
At end of year RER 12,962 10,856

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$12,962,000 (2017: HK$10,856,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$12,962,000 (2017: HK$10,856,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in default or delinquency in payments. The Group does not
hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

T b 3t 7 W AR ORR (B 18R 4 TP R M B 2R
e R BR SR B 15 78 512,962,000 T (=& —t
1 B¥10,856,0007T) @ 2L ARFRAYER
E{E#E%12,962,000T (= F—tF : B
10,856,0007T) ° %L 1E Bl 2 iR B FE I BR RS
RABEITNRBIERNES - NEBELEZ
EHRPFEEMERRIABRAE AR

k& o
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22.

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired It I B ER A R A
Within 90 days past due HHI90 A A
Over 90 days past due BHA90H LA £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RHIESH
Assets EE
Liabilities B8fE

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$47,082,000 (2017:
HK$21,497,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year.
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22. FBUWHRR ~ ANRIER TR AEMLE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
648,614 532,585
248,639 119,316
44,165 13,487
941,418 665,388

I BT ERRE 2 BWFIEY R AR
F ZEREFLERBINRER -

CEf  BEFREZRRREAS RERE
BERFERCH2EFAR - BELER
RARESRHARNCEEERFERES
ZEERDAT2HWE - EHEFFELRE

B AEEAERZEE

BRITEEARR - R

FEERAY -
fTESmIT A
2018 2017
—E2-N\F == —tF
HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BT
43,549 14,315
44,160 12,231

AEECHEITSERFEEHASTERNERE
NEEGHUEBEEEZRR - WER » N8
SRR EWEERIIESTEEBEN DR
B A B 147,082,000t (ZE—HF © B
21,497,0007T) °
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERRITER

Cash and bank balances
Time and structured deposits

with original maturity of less than EHREBMEER
three months when acquired

Time and structured deposits
with original maturity of EHREBMER

over three months when acquired

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$298,560,000 (2017: HK$143,436,000). At 31 March 2017, the
Group had HK$111,222,000 time deposits denominated in RMB.

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances
and time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy
banks.

24,

R B=EAREHZ

RATZB=EA U ERIHZ

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

BeERAEEEY
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT JBEF T
468,736 307,026
1,630,963 3,266,388
345,329 449,500
2,445,028 4,022,914

RBERR > U ELEBRBEREUARBEE R
£ R R 1717 7B % 298,560,000t (= F—+
F : B%143,436,0007T) c R=E—+F =5
=+—B FREBEARBEECEHENE
#111,222,0007T °

ARBRPBERETEERLREME
RIEPERENIIEERRIIREE - BER
NEEERTE  AEEEEEBEREETH
EXBRTEAREZBDBEMBER -

RITFRRES HRTEFRNEZRICFH B =
ME - EMREBUER2ERBE—FHU
T BIFAEEZARREFRME @ LIRS
BTN EBEERARERDNA L - R1T7
AR ERREBUEEFRERNEERFAVRIT -

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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25.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

In the prior year, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with independent third parties to dispose of certain
buildings. Accordingly, such buildings were classified as non-
current assets held for sale as their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through sale. The disposal transactions were
completed during the year ended 31 March 2018 with gains of
HK$25,145,000.

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale

In the prior year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of
certain subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”). The Disposal Group
was classified as a disposal group held for sale as its carrying
amount will be recovered principally through sale. The disposal
transaction was completed during the year ended 31 March 2018
with a gain of HK$57,254,000.

The major assets of the Disposal Group classified as held for sale as
at 31 March 2017 were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale PEAFENLEAREE
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W~ BERRE
B L FRER

PEABFENERDEERLEHE
EE

PEAFENERBEE

REFR  AEBEBYFE=FE]EEHE
HESDET - Bt ZEFIBAFENHE
REBEE  HZEERAESIZEBHERH
WE - ZEHERGRZE-NE=A=1+—
HIEFEERTR » Wik 5 E%25,145,0007T

PEAFENHEAREE

REFR SEE-BYFE=SE]—BEH
BHEDMHBAR (T HEHEE]D - Rt &%
HEARIBEAGTENHEMAH  EZEEA
BHEAESTERHERBKE - ZEHER
SRZB-—NE=ZA=+—HLFEARATHK "
Wz B8 %57,254,0007T °

RZE—tHF=A=1+—-H HEAZENEE
EEDBRRTEDINAT

2017
—E—tF

HK$’000
BT T
2,589
6,599

9,188



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

26. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables FEATRRRR

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

90H A
90R Lk

At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms.

27. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED

Other payables H A BRR
Deferred income IEFEUWRA
Accrued liabilities Estafs

Other payables, accrued liabilities and deposit received are non-
interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

26. R

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—ZT—tF
HK$°000
BT T
812,514

HK$'000
BT
1,019,340

RIBEHR - RBREBH 2 ENRRIRE DT

LU
2018 2017
—B-N\E —E—t%
HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BT
927,178 778,532
92,162 33,982
1,019,340 812,514

RBEHR - BERRBFEMER —RABIOX
HYRRER o

27. HttfENRR - BFtEERERET =

pIE: 2017
—E-N\F == —tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT JBEF T
154,375 231,451
11,810 4,155
332,841 238,385
499,026 473,991

HMEMRY - B EERC KT S H3EH
2 BF9RMA=MEA -

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. MIERITER

Effective Effective
annual annual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$000 (%) Maturity HK$000
BRERR BERER=
(%) BEFT (%) ZI8A BETFT
Current TE
Bank loans RITER — within 1 year or Within 1 year or
— unsecured Fusiei 1.07-3.92 on demand 1,390,804 0.65-4.79 on demand 2,436,599
R—FRHRER N—FRIRER
Non-current FRE
Bank loans RATER — April 2019 to April 2018 to
— unsecured EIKH 1.78-2.17 May 2020 187,500 1.45-1.63 March 2019 80,682
—E-NEWNAZE —Z-)\5mAZE
—E-EFIA —T-hF=A
1,578,304 2,517,281

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT JBETT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: IRITEREBE
Within one year or on demand R—FRPIRER 1,390,804 2,436,599
In the second year EER 150,000 80,682
In the third to fifth year, inclusive FZZERAFR(BEEEMF) 37,500 -
1,578,304 2,517,281
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, all bank borrowings are A—E-NF=A=+—BAR=-ZF—+tF=A
in Hong Kong dollars, RMB, United States dollars or Japanese =+—H" Fﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ LI HEBE - AR -
Yen. ExAx
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Group's banking N-ZB-NE=ZA=+—HBR=Z—tF=A
facilities were supported by corporate guarantees from the =t+—HB  AEBMRTEENBAALATARE
Company and certain of its subsidiaries. BB B L R D SEHEAR ©
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29. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At beginning of year READ

Deferred tax charged/ FRRBRKT
(credited) to the M/ (L)
statement of profitorloss ~ EEHIE
during the year

At end of year REX

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2016

Deferred tax credited to
the statement of profit or loss
during the year

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the statement of profit or loss
during the year

At 31 March 2018

29. EAEFIR
EEBEEE
Withholding tax on the
distributable profits of ~ Depreciation allowance in
the Group's PRC excess of related
subsidiaries depreciation Others
BNHENEAT BHRBTERRAN
) RERHE Hfty
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\F ZT-tF BN\ ZB-tF ZB-\f ZEAF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BlTr  BETr  BMTr BETr BEFn BEFr BEFn BEFo
159,253 163,818 (721) (721) 9,475 3,208 168,007 166,305
(64,956) (4,565) - - (2,498) 6,267 (67,454) 1,702
94,297 159,253 (721) (721) 6,977 9,475 100,553 168,007
ELEHREEE

RZZE-—AREEA—H
FRRERKRPINL
HYIESER IH

R=-ZE—tF=A
=+t—HkK
—E—+tHFMA—H

FRABREEZHPME
(HIBR) BYIESERL IR

it SYCEY:
=+-F

Unrealised
losses on
derivative
financial
instruments

PTEETRMTA
RERERE
HK$’000
BETFT

Loss available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profits
AIA{EIESE R #
FERBURFIRY
18

HK$°000

BT T

P
|=N=]

HK$°000

BT T

- 28,359 28,359

- 28,359 28,359

9,505 (5,055) 4,450

9,505 23,304 32,809
RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$641,273,000
(2017: HK$684,795,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of HK$412,142,000 (2017: HK$353,789,000) and in
Taiwan of HK$72,966,000 (2017: HK$63,300,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which losses arose for a maximum period of five years and ten
years, respectively. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$500,037,000 (2017: HK$512,922,000), HK$412,142,000 (2017:
HK$353,789,000) and HK$72,966,000 (2017: HK$63,300,000)
arising in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan, respectively,
have not been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries for
which, no assessable profits are expected to be generated in the
foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated on or after 1 January 2008. At 31
March 2018, the Group does not have unprovided withholding
tax (2017: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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ERERIE (7)
AEEBREBELEZHEBEAEY
641,273,000 T ( = T — £ F : B #
684,795,0007T) @ FZEELERBBEIEBNAT
AR PR B B 18 AR IR 8 B 8 2 FERRBUR
A REBRPEAERSEEE ZFIBEHE
DR BEEEA12,142,000 T (ZF—+F : &
#353,789,0007T ) &% 8% 72,966,000t (=&
—+ & : #B%63,300,00070) © ZEEEFE
BEMNLARERZESEREREEZEBE
EEXESBEFERTERANERBEF - AR
BHZEHNBLARRATRERTEELER
FaFl > REB - PEAERAEZEEZH
B E5 185 B 558 %500,037,000t (= F—+t
F : #B%512,922,0005T) ~ 8%412,142,000
TT(=ZZ—+ & : j8¥353,789,0007T) K &H
72,966,0007T (= Z —t £ : #%63,300,000
TC) HESE R IEE E W B TRERR ©

RIEPEREFAEE - PEIKENINERSE
AROIFREESRNKRERE10%EN
BiE - ZBRA-TENF-A-HBEX
YEAR-ZZLF+-A=T—REAELEN
A - S FREETRBE - ERERDBE -
EHAARERTEAEARBHE - BAR
REBHERS5%KR10% I AERFZ
ERPEARERIVHBELRNE -EENF—
A—BENERFDIKNREBRNHENE
F-RZTB-—NE=ZA=+—0  FAEELE
REBERABE(ZZ—CF  H) -

RAFEHERRKE RS WEEHEFE
BMFTEH 2 RR -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

31.

Ordinary shares

Authorised: SETE :
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each 2,000,000,0008% F R HEE
in nominal value 7B#0.057T
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE

1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value B#0.057T

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company'’s shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of an
associate was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice Dyeing
Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the principal operation of which is
conducted in Macau, is required to appropriate annually not
less than 25% of its profit after tax to a legal reserve, until
the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital
fund. The reserve made has fulfilled the statutory requirement
accordingly.

30.

1,381,696, 104 S R HEE

31.

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

L&
LR

2018
ZE-N\F

2017
—ZT—tF
HK$000
BT T

HK$'000
BT

100,000 100,000

69,085 69,085

(E4i]
FEERAFERBAFENRBESERAES
ZEB2INGEEEREBRA -

HEAXBDRDE-—ANZF EHATNEA -

FEBZEHESRD/A DR CBITRAZHE
SPGB R D RS B B2 B BT IRAE
Bo=%-

REEC S| BB B BHREENEINBEM
1R AR -ER-FARENEBAHE
EHNHEBRERGEREENME - BWiE—
BELREENEE  NESRGEEREET
hoHEER-E-N\FZA=+—-HKZ=E
—tF=B=+—H#%%E%110,648,0007T °

RIFRFEER AR -2 ERAHELQ
B KERRORMBFEBERE)ARAF
HEIREFRNRMET  FEFOREFIR
25% R BF ZEERE - EEZRIBE
BEEZRAELRETMS0% » ZBANRBE
EENERERNER -

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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32. SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 32. BEEAFEREZHEBLAT

INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non- AEBFEEERFERER ZHBQARNGES
controlling interests are set out below: HHWOT :

Baleno Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries HEREEERATRENE AR

Percentage of equity interest held by FERERETEZ
non-controlling interests BRAERB D 36% 36%

2018 2017
—EB-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year allocated to FERERDEAFE
non-controlling interests g 12,422 28,011

Consolidated accumulated balances of non-  R$R%&E AIFERER >
controlling interests at the reporting dates HREEEE 475,671 447,770
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (continued)

32.

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated

financial information of Baleno Holdings Limited and its

subsidiaries:

Revenue

Total expenses
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

WA

Changes in fair value of investment properties IREE R SEEE

&R
REEEF
FEEEFEBARE

REBEE
FRBEE
REEE
FRBEE

REMERERANFH

RETHREMHEFE

BMETHRESRA (RH)
R

RERBESEEW2
2, (Rl ) 58

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

BEAFEREZZHB AR (&)
TRITHCKEBERATREMBAT >
BAPBEREE

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$°000

BYF T BHF T

3,995,488 4,051,133

953 (3,931)

(3,961,935) (3,969,392)

34,506 77,810

77,504 53,200

2,019,544 1,642,117

303,610 311,059

(940,429) (653,402)

(61,418) (55,971)

129,518 331,364

(32,953) (77,520)

220,656 (455,921)

317,221 (202,077)
BAESEERAE —Z-N\ER®
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 21 December 2016, Trustland Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement

33.

with an independent third party to dispose of its entire equity
interest in Winca Investments (China) Limited and its subsidiary at
a consideration of HK$65,322,000. The transaction was completed
in April 2017.

HE MR A R
RZB—RE+ZA=+—H  xAFAZ2E
FEEMB AR Trustland IncEE—B Y E=H %
EEmHZE - UREHB%65322,000T HE
Winca Investments (China) Limited & H it
BARME#ER - ZRXZR-_ZE—tFHNAR
X o

HK$’000

BETFT

Net assets disposal of:
Property, plant and equipment
Cash and bank balances
Prepaid land lease payments
Prepayments and other receivables
Accrued liabilities and other payables

FrHEZEEFHE

I - MERFRE
RERRITER

BT EER
FANRIER H AR YR
st ER HAEAIRK

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve Bz INESEHE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A&

2,589
155
6,599
2,693
(164)

11,872

(3,804)
57,254

65,322

HK$°000

Satisfied by: EEAR
Cash* e
* Such cash consideration was received in prior year.

An analysis of the net cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

BEFT

65,322

* ZERTRECRUEFERR -

FHRHENBLARZRERRESEWFELZ
DT ¢

HK$000

BT

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances disposed of

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. SABSHRERME
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RETBEEZEE

m
@i

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

M S ERITER

HK$000

BT T

At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+tFWA—H 2,517,281

New interest-bearing bank borrowings TR RITER 2,026,781

Repayment of interest-bearing bank EEMRERITER

borrowings (3,004,916)

Foreign exchange adjustments INE FEE 39,158

At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=A=+—8H 1,578,304

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HEEE
(a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not (a) MB|EHR > UTHHEEBERRUER
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: FARE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+5F
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REHEAYEREZ
property rental deposits RATIER 4,975 4,603
Guarantees for banking facilities ABENTRTEER
granted to an associate PR 2 1R - 12,500
As at 31 March 2017, the banking facilities granted to an R-ZE—tF=A=+—8 BE&ELQT
associate with guarantees given to a bank by the Group I#ﬁiif]ﬁﬁ$$laﬂ IRITIFIRR 2R
were not utilised. As at 31 March 2018, such banking THE R-ZZ—N\E=A=+—-8"
facilities were cancelled. ZERITEESHUH °

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the prior years’ tax affairs of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

The protective tax assessments for the years of assessment
2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008, 2008/2009, 2009/2010,
2010/2011 and 2011/2012 issued by the IRD in March 2012,
March 2013, March 2014, March 2015, March 2016, January
2017 and January 2018 are HK$69,125,000, HK$189,000,000,
HK$388,878,000, HK$376,200,000, HK$323,648,000,
HK$237,600,000 and HK$183,745,000, respectively. The
Group purchased tax reserve certificates of HK$4,500,000,
HK$31,500,000, HK$34,000,000, HK$38,000,000,
HK$38,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 for the years of
assessment 2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008, 2008/2009,
2009/2010 and 2010/2011 respectively, in previous years,
and an additional tax reserve certificate of HK$7,090,000
for the year of assessment 2011/2012 during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have further received
in April 2018 the additional/estimated protective tax
assessments from the IRD for the years of assessment
2012/2013, 2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 2016/2017
in the amounts of HK$136,139,000, HK$498,940,000,
HK$247,460,000, HK$230,400,000 and HK$129,628,000,
respectively. The directors of these subsidiaries believe
that there are valid grounds to object to the tax claimed.
Subsequent to the objections filed in May 2018, the IRD
agreed to hold over the tax claimed completely subject to
the purchases of additional tax reserve certificates by the
Group. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group purchased tax reserve certificates of HK$46,069,000,
HK$166,320,000, HK$82,500,000, HK$71,710,000 and
HK$49,808,000, for the years of assessment 2012/2013,
2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 2016/2017,
respectively.

In view that the tax review for the years of assessment from
2005/2006 to 2016/2017 is still in progress, the outcome
of the case is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the directors of the Company
consider that adequate tax provisions have been made in
the financial statements.
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RE&E#)

(b)

EFRBBR (BB ) aAEEIBDHE
REAREMAEFERBESHETE
o

RER=ZZ——F=Z8 ZZ—-=F=
A-ZE-NFE=ZRF - -ZE-HF=
A -ZZ—RE=ZR -=ZF—tF—78
F—ZB-NE-AR=-2ZH T
NN ZEBER/ZEEL N ZFEL)S
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13)
and sublets certain properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
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36. REHERH
(a) fEBRHAA
AEERBELHETHHERTRE
W (MIEE13) REBIDHWE - BTHE
H—EERE - BOIKR—RETHES
AR RBRS RTHTRIBERSTS
EREMBEHRSHE -

R|BEMR - AEERBEBFT L2
T EERES N 2 RRKEEW
HMERB\IMPERMOT

2018 2017
—B2-NF —E—tE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year N—FR 30,559 24,446
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZERIFHN(EBFEEWSE) 49,124 28,740
After five years REFE - 3,403
79,683 56,589

As lessee (b) fEREHEA

The Group leases certain land and buildings for factories,
retail outlets, a training centre and directors’ quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Such leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one year to fifty years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

REERBESEHEZHAMED Lt
REFRERE - TEFT - FIIF 0
RESES - ZSHENETHE—F2
iy g

RIBEMR - AEERBEEEITIH

THRBIRBERDOT

2018 2017

—EB-N\E —2—+tF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BEFT

Within one year R—FR 364,255 429,665
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZEERIFRN(BIEEEME) 497,499 739,239
After five years RAF#E 366,722 398,847
1,228,476 1,567,751

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or the contingent rent
based on the sales derived from the retail outlets pursuant
to the terms and conditions as set out in the respective
rental agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be estimated reliably, the relevant contingent
rent has not been included above and only the minimum
lease commitment has been included in the above table.

BOZEMHRERNBSREE
HERARERBEAPTEZ R R R
BREEPMTHEREMEE 2 RAEETH
ER2BSEMEE o bR RER ML
HEREMMARZHEERE  RERK
SFAHBERAEE - MARAFARERS
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31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the end

of the reporting period were as follows:

In respect of property, plant and equipment,
contracted but not provided for

38. RELATED
(a)

BAREEE

PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following related party

transactions:

Sales to Megawell

Purchases from Megawell

Rental expenses paid to related
companies

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HETEE
EE{EERE
BEEELQ RN
HEeEH

Sales to Megawell were made according to the prices and
conditions offered to major customers of the Group.

The directors considered that purchases from Megawell were
made according to the prices and conditions similar to those
offered to other customers by Megawell.

Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which
certain directors of the Company are also the directors
and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The directors
considered that the monthly rentals were charged based on
the prevailing market rates at the dates of entering into the
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors’
quarters were included in the directors’ remuneration as
detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.

In addition, the Group has provided certain guarantees for

banking facilities granted to Megawell, as detailed in note
35(a) to the financial statements.
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38.
(a)

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
BHF T

HK$’000
BT

150,398 75,749

BEALXRS

RER  AEBBETUTHEEALR

5

2018 2017
—2-N\& Tt
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT
3,493 154,932
31,282 223,566
24,438 22,176

Bet -

(i)

(iii)

1t Fb

FEEZHEREAEE LT EE
PR ERRIKIETL

BEERBOEERBZEBRFMNL
BEERMEPARHRIEE

& BHRNT T RBE L AEREG
BBR P EAEZ G L A EEE
& FEPIH RGN L - ZERA
ZEEREmRRI AR50
EF - EFARGAHZTIREH
ERE#HTHZ TS EKERE - 14
ZEFHEHLEACOEREFH
& LA BEIREMET

AEEAREEHETRITE

BEER FHERBRYBHRRMT
35(a) °
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286 Bin Jiang Road,
He Ping Qu, Tianjin City, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution of apparel and accessories
business of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2016 at the monthly rents of RMB 1,207,500 for
the period from 1 April 2016 to 30 June 2016, RMB1,266,500
for the period from 1 July 2016 to 31 March 2017; and
RMB1,329,900 for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018, respectively. During the year, the Group paid to MRL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$18,424,000 (2017: HK$16,162,000). On 13 February 2018,
MRL and the Group renewed the agreement for a term of
two years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly
rent of RMB1,329,900.

On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22
Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex
as a director’s quarter of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the monthly rent
of HK$400,000. During the year, the Group paid to Latex
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$4,800,000 (2017: HK$4,800,000). On 13 February 2018,
Latex and the Group renewed the agreement for a term of
two years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly
rent of HK$400,000.

On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong and
a car parking space from WLEL as a training centre of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2016 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200. During the year,
the Group paid to WLEL operating lease rentals in respect
of the above property of HK$758,400 (2017: HK$758,400).
On 13 February 2018, WLEL and the Group renewed the
agreement for a term of two years commencing from 1
April 2018 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200.

38.
(b)

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BAEALRZ @)

®

(@]

(d)

A non-controlling shareholder of Baleno Holdings Limited
had provided an unconditional guarantee to indemnify
the Group from any loss arising from the recoverability
of prepayments made to a supplier of the Group of
HK$4,696,000 (2017: HK$4,696,000) as included in the
balance of “Prepayments, deposits and other receivables”
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits SHEEEA

Post-employment benefits BBz ER

Total compensation paid to key FEEEAE
management personnel HrifasE

The key management personnel of the Group refers to the
executive directors of the Company.

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.

Rental expenses under 38(b) to the financial statements
paid to related companies also constituted continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the section of “Details
of non-exempt continuing connected transactions” in the
Report of the Directors, the remaining rental expenses paid
to related companies also constituted continuing connected
transactions which were exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(d)

NMEBREEERAAZHFP —
BERRAAEEES —HEFTER
B ¥4,696,000C (= — Lt F @ B
4,696,0007T ) IR MR ER AFHEAT
AAREEMEWR EZEX - RIREHK
ZHCBERAEENIFELRE 7T
SR EMEWERTR &S -

AEBEREREARHH -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —Z—tF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
66,311 82,487
27 18
66,338 82,505
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EE-
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. RERESNEMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHR  SESMIARDENT :

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets SREE
2018
—E-N\E
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
Held-to- through profit IGEN for-sale
maturity  or loss - held and financial
investments for trading receivables assets
URAfEE
BHEE
FABEH
SREE EXR AHEE
FRIMHRE -KEEE FE IR LREE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT BEFT BETFT
Trade receivables FEWBRRR - - 941,418 - 941,418
Bills receivable RRZE - - 108,931 - 108,931

Financial assets included in BERENRE LR
prepayments, deposits and Hi IR A2

other receivables SHEE - - 317,646 - 317,646
Held-to-maturity investments ~ #ZZIHIHRE 368,323 - - - 368,323
Available-for-sale investments ~ A[{EHERE - - - 152,061 152,061
Long term rental deposits EHfieRe - - 87,183 - 87,183
Derivative financial assets TTEEREE - 43,549 - - 43,549
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEN - - 2,445,028 - 2,445,028

2017
—2—tf
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
Held-to- through profit Loans for-sale
maturity  or loss - held and financial
investments for trading receivables assets
WA RERE
BHZE
T AR
tREE EXR THEE
FEEANRE -5fEE e EtREE CE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Trade receivables FEURERSR - - 665,388 - 665,388
Bills receivable R SRR - - 123,507 - 123,507

Financial assets included in BRERENTE T2k
prepayments, deposits and HitEURERF A2

other receivables SREE - - 270,404 - 270,404
Held-to-maturity investments & ZZ|HIHRE 485,534 - - - 485,534
Available-for-sale investments  A[{EHERE - - - 54,250 54,250
Long term rental deposits RSz - - 112,776 - 112,776
Derivative financial assets THEEREE - 14,315 - - 14,315
Cash and cash equivalents HeRHEZEN - - 4,022,914 - 4,022,914

BAEEEERLT —T—N\EH @
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 39. REFESNERMIA®)
Financial liabilities SEaRs

Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss — held amortised
for trading cost
RARETE
BEH#E
sFABRH REH
SRBE A A BRHY
—RFEE SRBE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade payables FE(SERRR - 1,019,340 1,019,340
Bills payable BNEE - 19,232 19,232
Due to an associate FE{SEEE N T) - 20 20
Financial liabilities included in BIERE A ETARTR
other payables, accrued liabilities EtEEREWIIEARAZ
and deposit received SRIBE - 235,699 235,699
Derivative financial liabilities TEERAE 44,160 - 44,160
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2R{TE R - 1,578,304 1,578,304

2017
—E—+tF
Financial
liabilities at
fair value Financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss - held amortised
for trading cost
AR ETE
BHZF)
FTABREH 1R
SRIBE FRZA A BRHY
—FFEER =l ast
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T JBIETF T BT T
Trade payables FE(SERR - 812,514 812,514
Bills payable BNERE - 21,961 21,961
Due to an associate FE{TEEE N T) - 57,001 57,001
Financial liabilities included in BIERE A ETARTR
other payables, accrued liabilities EFtEEREWIIEARAZ
and deposit received SRIBE - 233,658 233,658
Derivative financial liabilities fTESREE 12,231 - 12,231
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt S RITER - 2,517,281 2,517,281
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40.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

31 March 2018 =E—NFE=H=+—A
ERMTRAZAIAEER

AEESMTIAEZIRMERAAE(GRMER
HARBAREMBEE 2SR AR HIm

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

T

Carrying amounts Fair values
FREE ARE

2018 2017 2018 2017
“EB-N\NF E—+tF ZZB-NFE ZZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT BHF T BYTT BHEFT

Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ 2RI A 43,549 14,315 43,549 14,315
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 152,061 54,250 152,061 54,250
Held-to-maturity investments FEIEBNRE 368,323 485,534 358,250 461,154
563,933 554,099 553,860 529,719

Financial liabilities SRaE
Derivative financial instruments T4 &@TA 44,160 12,231 44,160 12,231

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, held-to-maturity
investments, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables, bills payable, an amount
due to an associate, current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings, and financial liabilities included in other payables,
accrued liabilities and deposit received approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department directly reports to the Board. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
Board.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

EEECHERERBESEEY  BURT
BYRRE - FEEHHRNRE BEREMSR
HoRERAEMEVRRAZEREE - &
IR~ EAREE - BEBEQATRE - MR
RITERRB I RBBENEEAIR - &
FFEEREWFTEAZEREBENAREREE
REERS  TEHRLETANIREHR

2 °

FEBRPBREREZMBHEEREESH
TAAREFEZBERME - BEIBEERD
EESESH - NE-RER - BEBITEH
TAEESY  WREGEKEAZEEHA
B fHERESSEEHE -

SRMAEREEZAABEURT AREARS
7 (T AR AR HE) BHXS T2 U5
SHAR - EFERAABRERATIS®
KB

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR



@

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3Rk R =E

31 March 2018 —E—1E=F=+—H

40.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the long term rental deposits and non-current
portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk
for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March 2018 was
assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of available-for-sale investments and held-to-
maturity investments are estimated based on quoted prices.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, are measured using valuation techniques
similar to forward pricing models. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including foreign exchange spot and
forward rates. The carrying amounts of derivative financial
instruments are the same as their fair values.
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 40. €BIBEZ A AREEH(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIBAEENESRITIEMNAREBTESE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: RAREENEE !

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
R=ZZB-NF=ZA=+—HHDAETERHA
Quoted prices  Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RIER BX BX

ikl ATEEK FAIBEN

wE B ABE (PN ¢
(—4) (=) (B=#) wE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT B TFT EBEFr BEFr
Derivative financial assets ITHEEMERE - 43,549 - 43,549
Available-for-sale investments A {EHERE 152,061 - - 152,061
152,061 43,549 - 195,610

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
R=2—tF= A=+ —BNAREIERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RIER B BX

G 1 ) AHEN  TABEN

HE A BIE A&
(5—#) (EE=#) (B=#) zg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BHEFT BT T BT T BT T
Derivative financial assets THEEMERE - 14,315 - 14,315
Available-for-sale investments  A[{fHE&ERE 54,250 - - 54,250
54,250 14,315 - 68,565

BAEEEERLT —T—N\EH @
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40. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 40. €I EZ N AREEH(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: EHEANENEAS

mh

Ir

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
R-B-—NE=ZA=+—HHNAAETERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RSE R BX BX
THE M ATEREN FAIBEN
wE BABE B ABE
(%—4) (E=#) (B=#) wmE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BT T BT B Fr
Derivative financial liabilities T4 £REE - 44,160 - 44,160

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
REZB—tF=A=+—HWAREFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

AR EPN EPN
W TERG  FUBRG
BE  BABE BB
(E-®)  (BESR (EER o3
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT  BETT  BEFT BT

Derivative financial liabilities T4 ¢ma& - 12,231 - 12,231
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31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 40. €I B2 NAREZEH(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the Group had no R-E-NE=B=+—-HK=-ZE—+HF=H

financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3. =+—8 AEFWERAALABIIEE=H2
SMIE-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - eREEREHEEHIETAQARER

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into EE-REE_MoBENWER > FERE=H

or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities HEAREBEH(ZE—+F : #) o

(2017: nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EHEQANENEE

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2018
R=B-N\E=ZA=+—HWAREFEBRA
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RIER EPN BEX
TG AEEN  TUHEN
£ [TPN ¢4 BABE
(B—%) (=) (E=4&) e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Held-to-maturity investments  #EZ|HINIRE 358,250 - - 358,250

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
REZB—tF=A=+—HNWAREFTELRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

ATER BEX BX

k=11 ATERER MY TABEN

HwE A B LoPNE 6
(E—#%) (BB=#) (FE=#) gy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B F T B F T BT BT

Held-to-maturity investments  FZFHWIRE 461,154 - - 461,154

BAEEEERLT —T—N\EH @
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans, cash and cash equivalents. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills receivable,
trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivative financial instruments
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s and the Company's profit before tax and
equity (through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

2018 —E-N\F
Hong Kong dollar peeticd
Hong Kong dollar peticd
2017 —E—tF
Hong Kong dollar peeticd
Hong Kong dollar peeticd

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 32% (2017:
28%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 27% (2017: 26%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

41.

31 March 2018 —&E—1E=H=+—H

BRRBREEBEERBE#)

MEER (F)
TERRRTEEEREHMEZENERT -
Z!-‘%l&#"&jﬂ’]l‘ﬁﬁﬂu/ SRR SR E

RENNZ2H (FHFIRERNEE)
E’Jﬁﬁl!’é‘&l‘i o

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax

Increase/
(decrease) in
interest rate and equity

BRBLAD
R R s
®hn, R

FEEm,
lrxljx

% HK$°000

BT T

1 (17,425)
(1) 17,425
1 (22,120)
(1 22,120

SNEEEL RS

TEEFEXSFEBRAR  ZERRELEE
BB ThEE E M LI 2 B (T EH E TR
B8 o REENN% (ZZ—LF 1 28%) ZHE
TDURE BN EEE I EREE - B
#27%(ZF—tF 1 26%) ZRANTIAEEE
IR UM EMEE -

RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41.

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to changes

in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2018 —E-N\F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B HEARERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB B HEAREAE
2017 —E—+F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B ARERE
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB B HEAREAE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 22
to the financial statements.
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Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
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BRBLAT

B )T E
CR2) 2,/ (Rd)
HK$000

BFT

1 1,796
Q)] (1,796)

1 22
Q)] (22)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. B¥EMRTSEEERBE %)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk R B 1 LB

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity AEBEERANARTEIRBITERUEE
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and AESNEEMRBEMNETE R-F
bank loans. As at 31 March 2018, 12% (2017: 3%) and 88% (2017: —NF=ZA=1t—H *EERERNI12%
97%) of the Group’s total borrowings would mature after one (ZE2E—+tF 3% )R8 (=ZTE—+tF :
year and in less than one year, respectively. 97%) DRI R —FER —FREIE -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at REBRBEHARANERERE  IRERBKRER
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ZANEEERALENT ¢

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
3 to
On Lessthan less than 1to5

demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=z
RER =Z@EBUR +t=@BR —Z1F A%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEFT BEFrT BETT BTt BETFT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings K ER{TE X% - 1,227,173 169,860 189,675 1,586,708
Trade payables FEATRRTR - 927,178 92,162 - 1,019,340
Bills payable EAEE - 19,232 - - 19,232
Financial liabilities included in BREREMEMIR

other payables, accrued S RERBEY

liabilities and deposit received A SRZEBMERE 104,853 130,846 - - 235699
Due to an associate FEEE AT 20 - - - 20
Derivative financial liabilities fTEmas - 21,533 22,627 - 44,160

104,873 2,325,962 284,649 189,675 2,905,159

2017
—T—tF
3 to
On Lessthan less than 1to5

demand 3 months 12 months years Total

==

mER EANA T-EARN -EEEF Ak

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BEfTrT BEFT BEFrT BETT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings [t S8R1TER - 2,358,623 80,828 82,849 2,522,300
Trade payables FETERRR - 778,532 33,982 - 812,514
Bills payable R REE - 21,961 - - 21,961
Financial liabilities included in BENEMEMAIRR -

other payables, accrued EstaEREY

liabilities and deposit received A ERAZEBMER 132686 100,972 - - 233,658
Due to an associate & AT 57,001 - - - 57,001
Derivative financial liabilities THEEmAas 23 3,566 5,742 2,900 12,231

189,710 3,263,654 120,552 85,749 3,659,665

BRERWEWLT —T—NFH @
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41.

®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41.

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

IR
kR - RERBEEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity BRER

Gearing ratio (times)
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EXBBHR(EEH)

BRRABEEEEREE @)

BEREE
FEBEREEENBAAEBEERSENSK
HEEh  ANBAKENEREEDES U
FEEBERMEESIRADEE -

TEEEREEREBURRBEEEERNEE
EHFAE - REEURBRARERRIREN
BRE - BRRBBERARBITHRURISRA
BERGERE - RBE=-Z—-N\F=A=+—H
R—Z—+tF=A=1+—HLFER EXE
BHEZ  BURREFILEESE o

REBEREFEBELRERER  EXEE
LERZNBRERRESBENRNENEER
PROVRERSTE - AEBNBREHEERER
BELERNEEKTF -

2018 2017
=B-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
BETFT BEFT
1,578,304 2,517,281
(2,445,028) (4,022,914)
(866,724) (1,505,633)
5,724,989 5,897,403

-0.2 0.3




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2018 ZE—#E=F=+—H

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RHBRARZRE

RBEE
NIRRT &
RERREEEY

BRBEE

REBAE
HitE SRR Bt A E

RBEEFSR
BERE
R
SEITIRAE
EACIGEED)
BOTREIAR S

Mg

BRI BRI T

RABRBEBR 2P BRRRERNT ¢

2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BEFT BT

3,025,507 3,743,319

201 201

765 2,780

966 2,981

722 2,681

244 300

3,025,751 3,743,619

69,085 69,085

2,749,412 3,232,391

207,254 442,143

3,025,751 3,743,619
RAEKEAFRLE —T-N\FR
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. ARIBHRRAEK#Z)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: i
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR EFEELNT -

Share Capital

premium redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits
& RZ
RER W E BRARG REER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BETFT BUETFT BUETFT BT

At 1 April 2016 RZZ—X"FEMA—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 3,334,722 4,088,490
Total comprehensive AEEREBALEE
income for the year - - - 553 553
2016/2017 interim dividend —E-x/ZE—+
FEPRHRE 10 - - - (414,509) (414,509)
2016/2017 proposed BN/ ZE—+
final dividend FERRRHRE 10 - - - (442,143) (442,143)
At 31 March 2017 and R=Z—+tF
1 April 2017 =A=+—-BR
R-ZZE—tFEMA—B 703,365 1,695 48,708 2,478,623 3,232,391
Total comprehensive AFEEZHEBALRE
income for the year - - - 614 614
2017/2018 interim dividend =2+ /BN
FERHRE 10 - - - (276,339) (276,339)
2017/2018 proposed —E—+t /ZF-N
final dividend FERRARERKRE 10 - - - (207,254) (207,254)
At 31 March 2018 R-Z-N&E
=ZA=+—8H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,995,644 2,749,412
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference HEAABBRBE—NAN-_ELHANESR
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the RATCESRBERNNTCRITRACHE
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries BEHEFWENEBATDRKER 2 A HEE S
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the CE o BETEE—NN\—FEQTEEE
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company’s B TRETBRTIRRSHEEEE -

shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. B SRR 2% E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AR EROR=E—N\EANB+HEEHES
by the board of directors on 15 June 2018. ERERISRET)E o
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